Notes to the Standalone
Independent
Auditor’s Report
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts are in H in lakhs unless otherwise stated)
To the Members of LT Foods Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements
Opinion
statements of LT Foods Limited (hereinafter referred to as the
“Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company
and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), its
associates and a joint venture, which comprise the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Consolidated
income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and
the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements,
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, and based on consideration of reports
information of subsidiaries and associates, the aforesaid Consolidated
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended (“the Ind AS”)
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their
Consolidated state of affairs of the Group, its associates and a joint
venture as at March 31, 2021, its Consolidated total comprehensive
comprehensive income), Consolidated changes in equity and its

Basis for Opinion

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained
by us along with the consideration of audit reports of the other
auditors referred to in the “Other Matters” paragraph below, is

Emphasis of Matter
statements in reference to a subsidiary, Daawat Foods
Limited, which has been audited by us, which describes
the uncertainties related to the legal outcome of ongoing
litigation related to the recoverability of Insurance claim (asset)
amounting to H 13,410.53 Lakhs as at March 31, 2021. The
Insurance Agency repudiated the insurance claim vide its order
a civil suit with District Court of Raisen, Bhopal, the outcome
of which is pending.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional

31, 2021. These matters were addressed in the context of
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided
in that context.
We have determined the matters described below to be the key
the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for

statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)

Code of Ethics issued by Institute of Chartered Accountant of
India (“ICAI”), and the relevant provisions of the Act and the

audit procedures performed by us and by other auditors of
entities/components not audited by us, as reported by them
to us, including those procedures performed to address the
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
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under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group, its associates and a joint venture in accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of

our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement
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S.
Key audit matters
No.

Our audit procedures to address the key audit matter

S.
Key audit matters
No.

Our audit procedures to address the key audit matter

Our audit work included, but not limited to, the following
procedures -

2

Our audit work included, but not limited to, the following
procedures -

1

Revenue recognition – Sale of goods
Refer Summary of significant accounting policies.
The
Group,
its
associates
and
a
joint
venture
recognised
revenues
amounting
to
H 4,64,434.54 lakhs for the year ended March 31,
2021, as disclosed in Note 35 and Note 58 to the
Consolidated financial statements.
Revenue comprises of sale of manufactured goods
(rice), by products and others – which is recognized
when control of such goods is transferred to the
customers and there is no unfulfilled obligation. Revenue
is measured at fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and is accounted for net of rebates, trade
discounts etc.
Also, there is presumed risk of fraud in revenue
recognition as per Standard on Auditing. Accordingly,
occurrence of revenue is a key focus area on account
of the multiplicity of Company’s products, multiple
channels for sales and the volume of the sales made
to them.

•

Understood and evaluated the business process of
revenue and receivables process for evaluating the design
effectiveness of internal financial controls;

•

Assessed the appropriateness of the accounting policies
relating to revenue recognition by ensuring their compliance
with Ind AS 115 (“Revenue from Contracts with Customers”);

•

Performed substantive analytical procedures on revenue
which includes margins analysis (corroboration between
revenues and costs for current year and its comparison
with last year), analysis for key customers etc.;

•

•

Due to the above factors, we have identified testing of
revenue recognition as a key audit matter.

Performed substantive testing on test check basis for
revenue transactions recognised during the year by testing
their underlying documents which include purchase orders
from customers, proof of deliveries (bill of lading for export
sales and lorry receipts etc for domestic sales), invoices
and collection of money from the customers (as applicable).
Considering different categories of customers, the nature
of documents supporting accuracy and occurrence of
transactions varies. Our testing methodology was designed
and implemented considering these facts and circumstances;

•

Reviewed reconciliation of revenues between books and
revenues disclosed in statutory returns, to the extent
applicable;

•

Performed other substantive audit procedures including
obtaining debtor confirmations on a sample basis,
reviewed the subsequent collection of payment and proof
of deliveries document of such selected debtors; and

•

Evaluated disclosures made in the financial statements for
revenue recognition from sale of goods for appropriateness in
accordance with the accounting standards.

Refer Summary of significant accounting policies.
The Group, its associates and a joint venture are
primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing
and selling rice and the Company’s inventory
primarily comprises of raw material i.e., paddy, soya,
semifinished rice, finished rice, stores and spares
and packing material. Such inventory is stored in
plant, rented warehouses, silos and storage bags.
Inventory holding is generally significant at the end of the
financial year considering seasonality of the agricultural
produce of paddy and natural ageing process followed
by the Company for getting desired level of quality. High
quantity of inventory at the year-end makes inventory
physical verification an extensive procedure for the
management.
The valuation of raw material, semi-finished and
finished rice is a comprehensive exercise and is carried
out manually. The valuation process involves estimation
around determination of –
•

Allocable overheads and their absorption rates;

•

Determination of net realisable value of by-products;

•

Capitalisation of borrowing costs to paddy, semifinished and finished rice, given significant holding
period between acquisition and production. Period
and rate of finance costs to be capitalised.

•

Due to outbreak of the COVID-19, several
restrictions were imposed by the local and foreign
government on international travel considering
public health and safety measures which resulted
into complexities for us to observe the physical
verification of inventory lying outside India, relating
to overseas entities audited by us, conducted by
the management. This necessitated using alternate
audit techniques as further described in our audit
procedures.

•

Assessed the appropriateness of the accounting policies
relating to valuation of Inventory by ensuring their compliance
with Ind AS 2 (“Inventories”) and Ind AS 23 (“Borrowing
Costs”);

•

Obtained inventory records and results of management
conducted count and reviewed reconciliation of differences,
if any, between management physical count and inventory
records. Tested the necessary adjustments, if any, made in
the inventory records by the management;

•

Reviewed reconciliation of inventory quantitative details in
general ledger/ valuation workings with reports obtained
from the management, as retrieved from SAP i.e., the
integrated ERP used by the Management. Understood and
tested the reconciling items, if any;

•

Obtained independent confirmations, on sample basis, for
inventory lying with third parties as at year-end;

•

Observed physical verification done by the management
as at year-end and also, independently verified few items
physically on sample basis for locations scoped-in, basis
materiality of stock lying at such locations to overall inventory
balance as at year-end;

•

Corroborated the results of our physical verification
procedures, on sample basis, with valuation workings
obtained from the management;

•

Appointed independent firms of Practitioner for providing
direct assistance in carrying out physical verification of the
inventory lying outside India for components/entities, audited
by us, on a sample basis prior to or as at the balance sheet
date and supervised and reviewed the work performed by
them;

•

Reviewed the inventory roll forward reconciliation statement
prepared by the management, wherever applicable, and
performed tests on sample basis by reviewing the supporting
documents and records to substantiate the existence of
inventory as at the reporting date; and

•

Presented our approach and results of physical verification,
including but not limited to scoped-in locations, methodology
followed for verification of inventory stored in bags and silos
and confirmation procedures, to the those charged with
governance.
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Evaluated the terms and conditions of the Key contracts,
including incoterms, with customers to ensure that the
revenue recognition criteria are assessed by the management
in accordance with the accounting standards;

Inventory – existence and valuation
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S.
Key audit matters
No.

frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the Consolidated financial statements
by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Accordingly, existence and valuation of the year-end
inventory balance, which is significant with respect to
the total assets, is considered to be one of the areas
which required significant auditor attention owing to the
complexity and judgements involved in the process of
physical count and valuation.

Information Other than the Consolidated
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for
the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report but does not include
the Consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available
to us after the date of this auditor’s report.
Our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

186

Valuation:
•

Obtained an understanding of management process of
inventory valuation;

•

Understood and evaluated the business process and
controls for inventory valuation process;

•

Tested inputs into the valuation process from source
documents/ general ledger accounts;

•

Tested quantitative reconciliation of opening inventory,
purchase/ production, sales and year-end inventory to
validate the rice yield during the year and to identify any
abnormal production loss. Compared the yield between
current year and prior year to identify abnormalities, if any;

•

Compared basis of key estimates, including those involved in
computation of allocable overheads and borrowing costs, to
prior year and enquired reasons for any significant variations;

•

Tested net realisable value of by-products from supporting
documents;

•

Tested arithmetical accuracy of valuation calculations; and

•

Evaluated appropriateness of disclosure of inventory yearend balance in the financial statements.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate
the matter to those charged with governance under SA 720
‘The Auditor’s responsibilities Relating to Other Information’.

Responsibilities of Management and Those
Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation and presentation of these Consolidated financial
statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true
and fair view of the Consolidated financial position, Consolidated
financial performance including other comprehensive income,
Consolidated changes in equity and Consolidated cash
flows of the Group and of its associates and a joint venture in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Accounting Standards (IND AS) specified
under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors
of the entities included in the Group and of its associates and
a joint venture are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Group and of its associates
and a joint venture respectively and for preventing and detecting

Financial Statements, which have been audited by other
auditors. The Consolidated Financial Statements also
include the Group’s share of net profit after tax of H 108.47
Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2021, as considered
in the Consolidated financial statements, in respect of three
associates, incorporated in India, whose financial statements
have also been audited by other auditors. The other auditors’
reports on financial statements of these entities have been
furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the
Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of these entities,
is based solely on the reports of such auditors as stated in
paragraph above.

In preparing the Consolidated financial statements, the
respective Board of Directors of the entities included in the
Group and of its associates and a joint venture are responsible
for assessing the ability of the Group and of its associates and
a joint venture respectively to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
entities included in the Group and of its associates and a joint
venture respectively or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Further, the Consolidated Financial Statements
also include the audited financial statements of two
subsidiaries, incorporated outside India, whose financial
statements reflect total assets of H 7,742.76 Lakhs as
at March 31, 2021, total revenue of H 16,255.19 Lakhs
and total net profit after tax of H 656.13 Lakhs and net
cash outflows of H 15.82 Lakhs for the year ended on
that date, as considered in the Consolidated Financial
Statements, which have been audited by other auditors.
The financial statements of these subsidiaries have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in their respective countries, and which
have been audited by other auditors under the standards
of auditing applicable in their respective countries. The
Holding Company’s management has converted the
financial statements of such subsidiaries from accounting
principles generally accepted in their respective countries
to accounting principles generally accepted in India. We
have audited these conversion adjustments made by
the Holding Company’s management. Our opinion, in so
far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included
in respect of these subsidiaries, is based on the audit
report of such other auditors as furnished to us by the
management and the conversion adjustments prepared
by the management of the Holding Company which have
been audited by us.

The respective Board of Directors of the entities included in the
Group and of its associates and a joint venture are responsible
for overseeing the financial reporting process of each such
entity.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the Consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing
(“SAs”) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these Consolidated financial statements.
We give in “Annexure A” a detailed description of Auditor’s
responsibilities for Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Other Matters
(a). The Consolidated Financial Statements include the audited
financial statements of six subsidiaries, incorporated in India and
outside India, whose financial statements reflect total assets of
H 68,116.85 Lakhs as at March 31, 2021, total revenue of H
116,986.33 Lakhs and total net profit after tax of H 1,582.11
Lakhs and net cash inflows of H 268.22 Lakhs for the year
ended on that date, as considered in the Consolidated

(b). The Consolidated financial statements of the Group, its
associates and a joint venture for the year ended March
31, 2020, were audited by another firm of chartered
accountants whose report dated May 28, 2020 expressed
an unmodified opinion on those Consolidated financial
statements.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of the matters
mentioned above.

Report on Other
Requirements
1.

Legal

and

Regulatory

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our
audit and on the consideration of reports of the other
auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiary

187

Financial Statements

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

Our audit procedures to address the key audit matter
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companies and associate companies referred to in the
other matters section above, as were audited by other
auditors, we report, to the extent applicable, that:
a.

b.

c.

d.

e.

f.

the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in “Annexure B”.
g.

We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of
the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements.
In our opinion, proper books of account as required
by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
Consolidated financial statements have been kept so
far as it appears from our examination of those books
and the reports of the other auditors.
The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
Consolidated financial statements.

		 i.

With respect to the adequacy of internal financial
controls with reference to Consolidated financial
statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, its
associates and a joint venture, incorporated in India, and

The Consolidated financial statements has
disclosed the impact of pending litigations on the
Consolidated financial position of the Group, its
associates and a joint venture– Refer Note 47 to
the Consolidated financial statements;

		

ii.

The Group, its associates and a joint venture did
not have any material foreseeable losses on long
term contracts including derivative contracts;

		

iii.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts,
required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding
Company, its subsidiary companies, associate
companies and a joint venture, incorporated in
India, during the year ended March 31, 2021.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial
statements comply with the Accounting Standards (IND AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Act.
On the basis of the written representations received from
the Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and
a joint venture, incorporated in India and audited by us,
as on March 31, 2021 taken on record by the respective
Board of Directors of the such companies and the
reports of the other auditors of subsidiary companies and
associate companies, incorporated in India and audited by
other auditors (as mentioned in ‘other matters’ paragraph
above), none of the Directors of the Holding Company, its
subsidiaries, its associate companies and a joint venture,
incorporated in India, are disqualified as on March 31, 2021
from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164
(2) of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014
as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given
to us:

2.

As required by The Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, in our
opinion, according to information, explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries,
its associate companies and a joint venture, incorporated in
India, to its Directors is within the limits laid prescribed under
Section 197 of the Act and the rules thereunder.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF LT FOODS LIMITED

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)
(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls based on our audit.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group,
its associates and a joint venture to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the Consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group, its associates and a joint venture to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Rahul Aggarwal
Partner
Membership No. 505676
UDIN: 21505676AAAABA5982
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2021

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the Consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group, its associates and a joint
venture to express an opinion on the Consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entities included in the Consolidated
financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors. For the other entities included in the Consolidated
financial statements, which have been audited by other
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audits
carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of
the Holding Company and such other entities included in
the Consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the Consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W
Financial Statements

•

•
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the Consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

•

Rahul Aggarwal
Partner
Membership No. 505676
UDIN: 21505676AAAABA5982
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2021
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF LT FOODS LIMITED
[Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent Auditors’
Report of even date to the Members of LT Foods Limited on
the Consolidated Financial Statements]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls
with reference to the aforesaid Consolidated
financial statements under Clause (i) of Subsection 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated financial
statements of LT Foods Limited (the “Holding Company”) as of
and for the year ended March 31, 2021, we have audited the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, its associate
companies, including companies audited by other auditors
(refer ‘other matters’ para below), and a joint venture, which
are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal
Financial Controls

190

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding
Company, its subsidiary companies, its associate companies
and a joint venture, which are companies incorporated in India,
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the
ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and
the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms
of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements of the Holding Company,
its subsidiary companies, its associate companies and a
joint venture, which are companies incorporated in India.

financial reporting and the preparation of Consolidated financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial
control with reference to Consolidated financial statements
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of Consolidated financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and Directors
of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the Consolidated financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial
Controls With Reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the Holding Company, its
subsidiary companies, its associate companies and a joint
venture, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control
with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
respective companies considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

Other Matters
Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements in so far as it relates to
three subsidiary companies and three associate companies,
which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the
corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies
incorporated in India.
For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W
Rahul Aggarwal
Partner
Membership No. 505676
UDIN: 21505676AAAABA5982
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2021

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls
With Reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements
A Company’s internal financial control with reference to
Consolidated financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

Financial Statements

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company,
its subsidiary companies, its associate companies and a
joint venture, which are companies incorporated in India, are
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the respective companies
considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“the ICAI”). These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the respective Company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Note

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Right of use assets
Goodwill
Other Intangible assets
Investments accounted for using the equity method
Financial assets
Investments
Loans
Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets
Non-current tax assets
Total non-current assets
Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent
Loans
Other financial assets
Other current assets
Total current assets
Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity
Total equity
Non-controlling interest
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Other financial liabilities
Lease liabilities
Long-term provisions
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Other non-current liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables
Due to micro and small enterprises
Due to others
Other financial liabilities
Lease liabilities
Other current liabilities
Short term provisions
Current tax liabilities
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

2
3
4
5
5
6

54,241.41
3,268.00
25,143.07
2,154.12
6,446.34
2,416.90

54,156.09
1,724.96
26,942.30
2,544.03
6,953.91
2,848.09

7
8
9
10
11
12

455.30
1,495.04
13,631.58
2,361.91
852.97
4,135.19
1,16,601.83

487.55
1,011.23
14,167.06
3,376.01
659.39
3,919.89
1,18,790.51

13

2,22,281.41

1,75,022.66

14
15
16
17
18
19

48,672.53
1,684.71
1,312.33
621.94
2,960.40
17,506.72
2,95,040.04
4,11,641.87

61,963.31
1,913.61
578.20
884.40
1,116.72
21,764.22
2,63,243.12
3,82,033.63

20
21

3,198.45
1,72,350.21
1,75,548.66
13,476.59

3,198.45
1,44,934.92
1,48,133.37
11,784.90

23
24
25
26
10
27

22,965.17
6.50
24,278.61
1,056.63
410.28
214.44
48,931.63

23,012.23
7.00
24,920.13
636.07
188.38
696.63
49,460.44

28
29

1,02,368.31
50,355.50
861.07
49,494.43
6,643.86
3,740.94
8,129.50
386.91
2,059.97
1,73,684.99
2,22,616.62
4,11,641.87

1,22,786.96
26,082.85
589.11
25,493.74
9,690.76
2,887.62
8,447.89
335.95
2,422.89
1,72,654.92
2,22,115.36
3,82,033.63

22

30
31
32
33
34

Statement of significant accounting policies		

(All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

1

			

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes are an integral part of the Consolidated
financial statements.					

Particulars
Income
Revenue from operations
Other income

4,13,509.37
3,788.19

4,68,616.54

4,17,297.56

37
38
39

3,62,130.31
5,283.20
(44,665.34)

2,81,871.98
5,471.10
9,737.01

40
41
42
43

25,779.33
8,739.22
10,848.54
60,270.37
4,28,385.63
40,230.91

19,858.57
13,227.04
9,137.22
49,503.24
3,88,806.16
28,491.40

(431.19)

(375.34)

39,799.72
39,799.72

28,116.06
(421.37)
27,694.69

10,339.19
552.72
10,891.91
28,907.81

8,823.44
(1,059.24)
7,764.20
19,930.49

49.37
(12.42)

(146.02)
45.85

(120.99)
4,652.53
(1,170.94)
3,397.55
32,305.36

3,771.13
(5,826.66)
1,683.34
(472.36)
19,458.13

27,404.90
1,502.91
28,907.81

18,450.42
1,480.07
19,930.49

3,208.77
188.78
3,397.55

(235.01)
(237.35)
(472.36)

30,613.67
1,691.69
32,305.36

18,215.41
1,242.72
19,458.13

8.57
8.57

5.77
5.77

44
46

Other comprehensive income attributable to
Owners of LT Foods Limited
Non-controlling interests
Total comprehensive income attributable to
Owners of LT Foods Limited
Non-controlling interests
Earning per equity share
Basic (H)
Diluted (H)

45
45

Statement of significant accounting policies			1			
The accompanying summary of significant accounting policy and other explanatory notes are an integral part of the Consolidated
financial statements.				
This is the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.
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4,64,434.54
4,182.00

35
36

Total income
Expenses
Cost of material consumed
Purchases of stock-in-trade
Changes in inventories of finished goods, semi finished goods, work in progress and
stock in trade
Employee benefits expense
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses
Total expenses
Profit before share of profit /(loss) of investments accounted for using
equity method and tax
Share of net loss of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity
method
Profit before exceptional items and tax
Exceptional items
Profit before tax
Tax expense
Current tax
Deferred tax expense/ (credit)
Total tax expense
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit or Loss
Re-measurement of net defined benefit plans
Tax on above
Items that will be reclassified to Statement of Profit or Loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
(Loss)/ Gain on cash flow hedge reserve
Tax on above
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit attributable to
Owners of LT Foods Limited
Non-controlling interests

For MSKA & Associates		
For and on behalf of Board of Directors of LT Foods Limited

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For MSKA & Associates		
For and on behalf of Board of Directors of LT Foods Limited

This is the Consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

Rahul Aggarwal
Partner
Membership Number: 505676

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Note
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before tax
Adjustments for:Depreciation and amortisation expense
Unrealised foreign exchange loss/(gain)
Loss/ (Profit) on sale of property, plant and equipment
Interest income
Finance charges
Dividend income
Gain on fair value of investments
Loss/ (Profit) on sale of Subsidiary
Impairment of investments
Amounts written back
Trade receivables and other amounts written off
Provision for doubtful debts
Share of loss in associates and joint venture
Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjustments for (increase) /decrease in operating assets:

194

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

39,799.72

27,694.69

10,848.54
889.05
(31.75)
(134.04)
8,739.22
(24.00)
(18.83)
(26.08)
135.00
(203.38)
69.46
677.52
431.19
61,151.62

9,137.22
1,081.44
11.82
(245.69)
13,227.04
(9.20)
(43.60)
344.96
691.93
375.34
52,265.95

12,648.15
(47,258.75)
(221.35)
1,087.94
4,210.53

(10,579.25)
14,101.84
(13.40)
2,006.14
(2,602.54)

24,256.51
2,931.91
(3,498.71)
471.52
55,779.38
(11,314.11)
44,465.28

(2,315.20)
8,622.71
(5,758.91)
(123.77)
55,603.57
(7,886.03)
47,717.54

(11,377.98)

(8,874.62)

1,482.93
134.04
24.00
(83.87)
(198.65)
26.08
(9,993.45)

425.02
245.69
(95.63)
209.15
(8,090.39)

Particulars
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Repayment of the long-term borrowings
Proceeds from/(repayment) of short term borrowings (net)
Finance charges paid
Payment of lease liabilities
Payment of dividend (including dividend tax)
Net cash used in financing activities
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents
Loss on re-statement of foreign currency cash
and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

C
(A+B+C)

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
With banks - on current account
Total cash and cash equivalents

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

3,583.16
(2,818.52)
(19,759.06)
(8,887.82)
(3,529.07)
(3,198.45)
(34,609.76)
(137.93)
(90.97)

3,642.46
(4,788.11)
(21,631.09)
(13,092.89)
(2,003.10)
(2,506.33)
(40,379.05)
(751.91)
(254.01)

1,913.61
1,684.71

2,919.52
1,913.61

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

85.07
1,599.64
1,684.71

158.61
1,755.00
1,913.61

Statement of significant accounting policies			1		
The accompanying summary of significant accounting policy and other explanatory notes are an integral part of the Consolidated
financial statements.			
This is the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.
For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number:- 105047W
Rahul Aggarwal
Partner
Membership Number: 505676

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2021

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of LT Foods Limited

Ashwani Kumar Arora
Managing Director and
Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 01574773

Surinder Kumar Arora
Managing Director
DIN: 01574728

Gokul Patnaik
Independent Director
DIN 00027915

Monika Chawla Jaggia
Company Secretary
Membership No.: F5150
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Trade Receivables
Inventories
Loan and advances given (current and non current)
Other financial assets (current and non current)
Other Assets (current and non current)
Adjustments for increase /(decrease) in operating
liabilities:
Trade payables
Other Liabilities (Current and non-current)
Other financial liabilities (current and non current)
Provisions
Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid (net of refunds)
Net cash generated from operating activities
A
Cash flows from investing activities
Payment for Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including CWIP and
capital advances)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Interest received
Dividend on non current investments
Purchase of non-current investments
(Investment)/Withdrawal in fixed deposits
Proceeds from sale/maturity of Subsidiary
Net cash used in investing activities
B

(All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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-

1,816.80
1,816.80

(106.53)
18,343.89
(487.88)
(479.77)
(1,599.22)
(427.34)
95,690.94
95,690.94

44,456.10
44,456.10

-

-

-

-

44,456.10
-

1,816.80
-

General
Reserve

80,341.26
18,450.42

Retained
Earnings

Securities
Premium
Reserve

Reserves and Surplus

(2,454.43)
(2,454.43)

(3,899.61)
-

(3,899.61)
-

-

1,445.18
-

5,425.51
5,425.51

3,771.13
-

-

3,771.13

1,654.38
-

44,456.10

-

44.00

27,448.90
(3,198.38)
1,19,941.46 1,816.80

-

-

-

-

-

General
Reserve
27,404.90

Retained
Earnings

Securities
Premium
Reserve

Reserves and Surplus

831.33

3,285.76

3,285.76
-

-

(120.99)
5,304.52

-

(120.99)

-

30,613.67
(3,198.38)
1,72,350.21

3,285.76
44.00

(120.99)

27,404.90

Other Components of
Equity
Attributable
Foreign
to owners of
Cash flow
currency
the parent
hedging
translation
reserve
reserve

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2021

Rahul Aggarwal
Partner
Membership Number: 505676

19,458.14
(487.88)

(4,143.32)
(100.17)

3,771.13

1,40,256.00
19,930.49

Total

3,481.59
36.95

(120.99)

28,907.81

Total

Surinder Kumar Arora
Managing Director
DIN: 01574728
Monika Chawla Jaggia
Company Secretary
Membership No.: F5150

Gokul Patnaik
Independent Director
DIN 00027915

LT Foods Limited

1,691.69
32,305.36
(3,198.38)
13,476.59 1,85,826.80

195.83
(7.05)

-

1,502.91

Noncontrolling
interest

(479.77)
(1,599.22)
(427.34)
11,784.90 1,56,719.82
11,784.90 1,56,719.82

1,242.72
-

(243.71)
6.36

-

10,542.28
1,480.07

Noncontrolling
interest

3,198.45
3,198.45
3,198.45

Amount

Ashwani Kumar Arora
Managing Director and
Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 01574773

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number:- 105047W

For MSKA & Associates

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date.

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policy and other explanatory notes are an integral part of the Consolidated financial statements.

Profit for the year
Items of OCI for the year :Exchange difference arising on translation of foreign
operations
Gain on cash flow hedge reserve (net of tax)
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (net
of tax)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year
Interim dividend
Balance as at March 31, 2021

Particulars

B. Other equity (Contd..)

(All amounts are in H in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

(479.77)
(1,599.22)
(427.34)
1,44,934.92
1,44,934.92

18,215.41
(487.88)

(3,899.61)
(106.53)

3,771.13

1,29,713.73
18,450.42

Other Components of
Equity
Attributable
Foreign
to owners of
Cash flow
currency
the parent
hedging
translation
reserve
reserve

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2021

Balance as at April 01, 2019
Profit for the year
Items of OCI for the year :Exchange difference arising on translation of foreign
operations
Loss on cash flow hedge reserve (net of tax)
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (net
of tax)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year
Impact on account of adoption of Ind AS 116
(refer note 4)
Final dividend
Interim dividend
Tax on dividend
Balance as at March 31, 2020
Balance as at April 01, 2020

Particulars

B. Other Equity

Balance as at April 01, 2019
Issued during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2020
Issued during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2021

Particulars

Financial Statements
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A. Equity Share Capital (Refer note 20)

(All amounts are in H in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2021
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

for the year ended March 31, 2021

for the year ended March 31, 2021

1. (A) Corporate Information

			

An asset is treated as current when it is:

			Non-controlling interests (‘NCI’)

		

			

•

Expected to be realised or intended to be
sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

			

			

•

Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

			

•

Expected to be realised within twelve months
after the reporting period, or

			

•

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted
from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

The Consolidated financial statements of LT Foods
Limited (‘the Holding Group’ or ‘the Company’),
together with its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the ‘Group’), associates and a joint venture,
having its registered office at Unit No 134, 1st Floor
, Rectangle -1,Saket District Centre, New Delhi
-110017, is primarily engaged in the business of
milling, processing and marketing of branded and
non-branded basmati rice and manufacturing of rice
food products in the domestic and overseas market.
LT Foods Limited operations include procurement,
storage, processing, packaging and distribution. The
Group is also engaged in research and development
to add value to rice and rice food products. The
Group’s rice product portfolio comprises brown rice,
white rice, steamed rice, parboiled rice, organic rice,
quick cooking rice, value added rice and flavored rice
in the ready to cook segment.

(B) Summary
policies

of

significant

accounting

		i)

Overall consideration

			

The Consolidated financial statements have
been prepared using the significant accounting
policies and measurement basis summarised
below. These were used throughout all periods
presented in the financial statements, except
where the Group has applied certain accounting
policies and exemptions upon transition to Ind
AS.

		

ii)

			

iii) Current versus non-current classification

			

198

The Consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on going concern basis in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted
in India. Further, the Consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on historical
cost basis except for certain financial assets
and financial liabilities which are measured at
fair values as explained in relevant accounting
policies. Fair valuations related to financial assets
and financial liabilities are categorised into level 1,
level 2 and level 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable.

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the
balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

			

A liability is current when:

			

•

It is expected to be settled in normal
operating cycle,

			

•

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

			

•

It is due to be settled within twelve months
after the reporting period, or

			

•

There is no unconditional right to defer the
settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

			

The Group classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent.

			

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as
non-current assets and liabilities.

			

Based on the nature of products and the time
between acquisition of assets for processing and
their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the
Group has ascertained its operating cycle as 12
months for the purpose of current or non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

		

			Equity accounted investees
			 The Group’s interests in equity accounted
investees comprise interests in associates and a
joint venture.
			

An associate is an entity in which the Group
has significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over the financial and operating policies.
A joint venture is an arrangement in which the
Group has joint control and has rights to the net
assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to
its assets and obligations for its liabilities.

			b)

Inventories

				

Inventories are valued as follows:

				

Raw materials, stores and spares and
packing materials

				

Lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost is
determined on ‘First in First Out’ basis, except
few entities in the Group where weighted
average cost method is used, and includes
interest on raw materials as a carrying cost
of materials where such materials are stored
for a substantial period of time. For entities
under weighted average cost method, the
impact of difference between First in First
Out and weighted average cost method is
expected to be immaterial due to the timing
of purchase and nature of inventory.

				

Raw material comprising Bardana is valued
at net realisable value. Stores and spares
having useful life of more than twelve
months are capitalised as tangible assets
under “Property, plant and equipment” and
are depreciated prospectively over their
remaining useful lives in accordance with Ind
AS 16.

			 Interests in associates and joint ventures
are accounted for using the equity method.
They are initially recognised at cost which
includes transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the Consolidated financial
statements include the Group’s share of profit or
loss and OCI of equity-accounted investees until
the date on which significant influence or joint
control ceases.
			

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

			

Intra-group balances and transactions, and
any unrealised income and expenses arising
from intra-group transactions, are eliminated.
Unrealised gains arising from transactions with
equity accounted investees are eliminated against
the investment to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains,
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

iv) Basis of consolidation

			Subsidiaries
			 Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its voting
power over the entity. The financial statements
of subsidiaries are included in the Consolidated
financial statements from the date on which
control commences until the date on which
control ceases.

Non-controlling interests, presented as part of
equity, represent the portion of a subsidiary’s
Statement of Profit and Loss and net assets that
is not held by the Group. Statement of Profit and
Loss balance (including other comprehensive
income (‘OCI’)) is attributed to the equity holders
of the Holding Group and to the non-controlling
interest basis the respective ownership interests
and such balance is attributed even if this results
in controlling interests having a deficit balance.

		

v)

Significant accounting policies

			a)

Use of estimates

				

The preparation of the Consolidated financial
statements in conformity with Ind AS requires
management to make estimates, judgments
and
assumptions.
These
estimates,

				Work in progress
				

Raw material cost and a proportion of direct
and indirect overheads up to estimated stage
of completion and also includes interest
allocated as carrying cost.

				Finished goods
				

Lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost
includes cost of raw materials, direct and

199
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Basis of Preparation

			

judgments and assumptions affect the
application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and
reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the period. Accounting estimates
could change from period to period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.
Appropriate changes in estimates are made
as management becomes aware of changes
in circumstances surrounding the estimates.
Changes in estimates are reflected in the
financial statements in the period in which
changes are made and, if material, their
effects are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

LT Foods Limited
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

for the year ended March 31, 2021

for the year ended March 31, 2021

indirect overheads which are incurred to
bring the inventories to their present location
and condition and also includes interest as
a carrying cost of goods where such goods
are stored for a substantial period of time.
			

c)

				

				

Property, plant and equipment

				Recognition and initial measurement
				

Property, plant and equipment are stated
at their cost of acquisition. The cost
comprises purchase price, borrowing cost
if capitalisation criteria are met and directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for the intended use. Any
trade discount and rebates are deducted in
arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent
costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic beneﬁts attributable to
such subsequent cost associated with the
item will ﬂow to the Group. All other repair
and maintenance costs are recognised in
Statement of Proﬁt or Loss as incurred.
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Assets
description

Useful lives

Buildings
Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment
Vehicles

3 to 39 and 1/2 years
5 to 30 years
4 to 10 years
3 to 6
4 to 10 years

			

				

Amortisation of intangible assets is provided
on the written down value method arrived on
the basis of the useful life prescribed under
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 or
the management estimate of the useful life of
the asset, disclosed separately below.

				

				

Amortisation of intangible assets of certain
subsidiaries is provided on straight line basis,
at the rates based on the useful life of the
assets as estimated by the management.

The Group assesses, at each reporting date,
whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any indication exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset
is required, the Group estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cashgenerating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets. When
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to
its recoverable amount.

				

In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. In determining fair value less costs
of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken into account. If no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation
model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted
share prices for publicly traded companies or
other available fair value indicators.

				

Impairment losses of continuing operations
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Intangible assets
Brands
Computer software
Goodwill
Intellectual property
rights
Non-compete
agreement
Customer relationships

				

			d)

An item of property, plant and equipment
and any significant part initially recognised
is de-recognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on de-recognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in Statement of Profit and
Loss when the asset is de-recognised.

				

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised
over the useful economic life and impairment
assessment is done annually. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the expected useful life or
the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered to modify the amortisation period
or method, as appropriate, and are treated
as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets
with finite lives is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

20
3
20
7
7
7

De-recognition
				

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition
of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss when the asset is de-recognised.

			e)

Investment properties

				

Property that is held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and that
is not occupied by the Group, is classified as
investment property. Investment property is
measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs and borrowing costs
(where applicable). Subsequent expenditure
is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance costs are expensed
when incurred. When part of an investment
property is replaced, the carrying amount of
the replaced part is de-recognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are
measured on initial recognition at cost.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses, if any.

Useful life in
years

		

				Recognition and initial measurement
				

f)

Impairment of non-financial assets

				After impairment, depreciation /amortisation
is provided on the revised carrying amount of
the asset over its remaining useful life.
				

The impairment assessment for all assets is
made at each reporting date to determine
whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses no longer
exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or
CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the assumptions
used to determine the asset’s recoverable
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				 Based on internal assessment and
independent technical evaluation carried
out by external valuer, the management has
re-estimated the useful life of Silos included
in Plant and Machinery from 15 years to 40
years with effect from April 01, 2016. The
management believes that the useful life
represents the period over which the assets
are expected to be used. The useful life of
this asset is different from the useful life as
prescribed under part C of Schedule II of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation on the following property, plant
and equipment of certain subsidiaries is
charged on straight line basis, at the rates
based on the useful life of the assets as
estimated by the management

				Amortisation

				De-recognition

				Subsequent measurement (depreciation and
useful lives)
				 Depreciation on property, plant and
equipment is provided on the written down
value method arrived on the basis of the
useful life prescribed under Schedule II of the
Companies Act, 2013 or the management
estimate of the useful life of the asset,
disclosed separately below. The identified
components are depreciated over their useful
lives; the remaining asset is depreciated over
the life of the principal asset.

The residual values, useful lives and method
of depreciation are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate.
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amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal is limited so that
the carrying amount of the asset does
not exceed its recoverable amount, nor
exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation /
amortisation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such
reversal is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.
			

g)

Revenues, costs and expenses are translated
using the weighted average exchange rate
during the reporting period. The resultant
currency translation difference is recognised
as foreign currency translation reserve under
the head ‘other equity’.

				

Functional and presentation currency

The Consolidated financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupee (‘H’) which is also
the functional and presentation currency of
the Holding Group.

				Transactions and balances
				

				

				

Foreign currency transactions are recorded
in the functional currency, by applying to
the exchange rate between the functional
currency and the foreign currency at the date
of the transaction.

				

Foreign currency monetary items are converted
to functional currency using the closing rate.
Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign
currency which are carried at historical cost are
reported using the exchange rate at the date of
the transaction; and non-monetary items which
are carried at fair value or any other similar
valuation denominated in a foreign currency are
reported using the exchange rates that existed
when the values were determined.
Exchange differences arising on monetary
items on settlement, or restatement as at
reporting date, at rates different from those
at which they were initially recorded, are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the year in which they arise.

				

The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best
interest.

				

				o

Disclosures for valuation methods,
significant estimates and assumptions

A fair value measurement of a non-financial
asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

				

o

Quantitative disclosures of fair value
measurement hierarchy

				

o

Investment in unquoted equity shares

When a foreign operation is disposed of
in its entirety or partially such that control,
significant influence or joint control is lost, the
cumulative amount of exchange differences
related to that foreign operation recognised in
OCI is reclassified to Statement of Profit and
Loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
If the Group disposes of part of its interest
in a subsidiary but retains control, then the
relevant proportion of the cumulative amount
is re-allocated to NCI. When the Group
disposes of only a part of its interest in an
associate or a joint venture while retaining
significant influence or joint control, the
relevant proportion of the cumulative amount
is reclassified to Statement of Profit and
Loss.
Fair value measurement

				

Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

				

•

In the principal market for the asset or
liability, or

				

•

In the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability.

				

				

Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

				

All assets and liabilities for which fair value
is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

				

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market
prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities

				

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.

				

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

				

For assets and liabilities that are recognised
in the financial statements on a recurring
basis, group determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by re-assessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period or each case.

				

For the purpose of fair value disclosures,
group has determined classes of assets
and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or

liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy
as explained above.
This note summarises accounting policy for
fair value. Other fair value related disclosures
are given in the relevant notes.

				o
			i)

Financial instruments

Revenue Recognition

				 Revenue is measured based on the
consideration specified in a contract with a
customer and excludes amounts collected
on behalf of third parties. A performance
obligation is a promise in a contract to
transfer a distinct good or service (or a bundle
of goods and services) to the customer
and is the unit of account in Ind AS 115.
A contract’s transaction price is allocated
to each distinct performance obligation
and recognised as revenue, as, or when,
the performance obligation is satisfied. The
Group recognises revenue when it transfers
control of a product or service to a customer.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, taking
into account contractually defined terms of
payments and excludes taxes and duties
collected on behalf of the government. The
Group recognises revenue from the following
major sources:
				Sale of goods:
				

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised
when it transfers control of the product to
a customer i.e. when customers are billed
(in case of ex-works) or when goods are
delivered at the delivery point, as per terms
of the agreement, which could be either
customer premises or carrier premises who
will deliver goods to the customer. When
payments received from the customers
exceed revenue recognised to date on a
particular contract, any excess (a contract
liability) is reported in the statement of
financial position under other liabilities.
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Functional and reporting currencies of foreign
operations are different from the reporting
currency of the Holding Group. For all the
foreign operations of the Group, all assets
and liabilities (excluding share capital and
opening reserves and surplus) are translated
into H using the exchange rate prevailing at
the reporting date. Share capital, reserves
and surplus are carried at historical cost.

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations
(subsidiaries) including goodwill and fair
value adjustments arising on acquisition,
are translated into H, the reporting currency
of the Group, at the exchange rates at the
reporting date. The income and expenses
of foreign operations are translated into H
at the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions or an average rate if the average
rate approximates the actual rate at the date
of the transaction.

			h)

				Conversion
				

The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group.

				Foreign operations

				Functional and presentation currency
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Customer has a right to return for defective
goods. Since the quantity of goods returned
has been minimal for years, it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the
cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur.
In order to determine if it is acting as a principal
or as an agent, the Group assesses whether
it has exposure to the significant risks and
rewards associated with the rendering of
logistics services. Revenue from rendering of
logistic services provided to its customer after
the transfer of control of underlying goods is
recognised on net basis i.e. after deducting the
amount contractually payable to transporters
out of the total consideration received and is
recognised once the facilitation of such service
is done as the Group does not assume any
performance obligation.

				Satisfaction of performance obligations
				

				

The Group revenue is derived from the single
performance obligation to transfer primarily
rice and other products under arrangements
in which the transfer of control of the products
and the fulfillment of the Group’s performance
obligation occur at the same time. Therefore,
revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
when the Group transfers control at the
point in time the customer takes undisputed
delivery of the goods.
Whether the customer has obtained control
over the asset depends on when the goods
are made available to the carrier or the buyer
takes possession of the goods, depending
on the delivery terms. Revenue is measured
at the transaction price of the consideration
received or receivable, the amount the Group
expects to be entitled to.

				Payment terms
				

				Rental income
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Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and benefits

contract revenue is recognised only to the
extent of contract costs incurred that are
likely to be recoverable.
				

Contract costs are recognised as expenses
as incurred unless they create an asset
related to future contract activity. An
expected loss on a contract is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

				

Recognition and initial measurement

				

Intangible assets acquired separately are
measured on initial recognition at cost.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

				Dividend income
				 Dividend income is recognised at the
time when right to receive the payment is
established, which is generally when the
shareholders approve the dividend.
				Interest income
				

				

Interest income is recognised on time
proportion basis taking into account the
amount outstanding and rate applicable.
For all financial assets measured at amortised
cost (refer ‘l’ below), interest income is
recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR)
i.e. the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to the net carrying
amount of the financial assets. The future
cash flows include all other transaction costs
paid or received, premiums or discounts if
any, etc.

				Service concession arrangements
				Revenue related to construction or
upgrade services provided under a service
concession arrangement is recognised
based on the stage of completion of the
work performed, consistent with the Group’s
accounting policy on recognising revenue on
construction contacts. Operation or service
revenue is recognised in the period in which
the services are provided by the Group.
				

				

Contract revenue includes the initial amount
agreed in the contract plus any variations
in contract work, claims and incentive
payments, to the extent that it is probable
that they will result in revenue and can be
measured reliably.
If the outcome of a construction contract
can be estimated reliably, contract revenue
is recognised in profit or loss in proportion to
the stage of completion of the contract. The
stage of completion is assessed by reference
to surveys of work performed. Otherwise,

				Subsequent measurement 			
			
(Amortisation and useful lives)
				All finite – lived intangible assets, including
internally developed intangible assets, are
accounted for using the cost model whereby
capitalised costs are amortised on a straight
line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life of an identifiable
intangible asset is based on a number of
factors including the effects of obsolescence,
demand, competition and other economic
factors (such as the liability of the industry,
and known technological advances), and the
level of maintenance expenditure required to
obtain the expected future cash flows from
the asset.
				De-recognition
				

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition
of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss when the asset is de-recognised.

			j)

Borrowing costs

				

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest
calculated using the effective interest rate
(EIR) that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also
includes exchange differences to the extent
regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing
costs.

			k)

Financial instruments

				

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised
when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument and
are measured initially at fair value adjusted for
transaction costs, except for those carried
at fair value through profit or loss which are
measured initially at fair value.

				

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities is described below.

				Financial assets
				Classification
measurement
				

The Group derives its other operating
revenue primarily from service charges and
processing charges and the revenue from
these services are recognised as revenue
when the related services are rendered i.e.
on accrual basis in accordance with the
terms of the contract entered into in respect
thereof.

subsequent

For the purpose of subsequent measurement,
financial assets are classified into the
following categories upon initial recognition:

				i.

Financial assets at amortised cost
– A financial instrument is measured
at amortised cost if both the following
conditions are met:

					

•

The asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold
assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

					

•

Contractual terms of the asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.

				Income from services:
				

and
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The sale of goods is typically made under
credit payment terms differing from customer
to customer and ranges between 0-180
days. No element of financing is deemed
present as the sales are made with a credit
term of upto 180 days, which is consistent
with market practice.

of ownership of the asset are classified
as operating leases. Lease income on
an operating lease is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight
line basis over the lease term unless the
escalation rate does not matches up in line
with the increase in the inflation rate.
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					After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

				

				ii. Financial assets at fair value
					•

Investments
in
equity
instruments
–
All
equity
investments in scope of Ind AS
109 are measured at fair value.
Equity instruments which are held
for trading are generally classified
as at fair value through profit and
loss (FVTPL). For all other equity
instruments, the Group decides to
classify the same either as at fair
value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) or fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL).
The Group makes such election on
an instrument by instrument basis.
The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.

						If the Group decides to classify
an equity instrument as at FVOCI,
then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends,
are recognised in the other
comprehensive income (OCI). There
is no recycling of the amounts from
OCI to Statement of Profit and
Loss, even on sale of investment.
However, the Group may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity.
Dividends on such investments are
recognised in Statement of Profit
and Loss unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment.

					•

					•
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Mutual funds – All mutual funds in
scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured
at fair value through profit and loss
(FVTPL).
Derivative assets - All derivative
assets are measured at fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL).

A financial asset is primarily de-recognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from
the asset have expired or the Group has
transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset.

				

For trade receivables only, the group applies
the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS
109 Financial Instruments, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables.

			l)

Hedge

				Financial liabilities
				Subsequent measurement
				 After initial recognition, the financial
liabilities, other than derivative liabilities, are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
				

Amortised cost is calculated by considering
any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the EIR. The effect of EIR amortisation is
included as finance costs in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

				Derivative liabilities - All derivative
liabilities are measured at fair value through
profit and loss (FVTPL).
				De-recognition of financial liabilities
				

A financial liability is de-recognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

				Initial and subsequent measurement
				 The Group uses derivative financial
instruments, such as forward contracts to
hedge its foreign currency risks and interest
rate risks and non-derivative financial
liabilities to hedge its foreign currency risks.
Such derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value on the date
on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently re-measured at
fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial
assets when the fair value is positive and
as financial liabilities when the fair value
is negative. Foreign currency risk of nonderivative financial liabilities used for hedging
is measured using spot rates.
				

				Offsetting of financial instruments
				

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
offset and the net amount is reported in
the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

				Impairment of financial assets
				

The Group assesses on a forward looking
basis the expected credit losses associated

objective and strategy for undertaking
hedge, the hedging/ economic relationship,
the hedged item or transaction, the nature
of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and
how the entity will assess the effectiveness
of changes in the hedging instrument’s fair
value in offsetting the exposure to changes in
the hedged item’s cash flows attributable to
the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected
to be highly effective in achieving offsetting
changes in cash flows and are assessed
on an ongoing basis to determine that they
continue to be highly effective throughout the
financial reporting periods for which they are
designated.

				

Any gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair value of derivatives and change
in foreign currency risk component of nonderivative financial liabilities are taken directly
to profit or loss, except for the effective
portion of cash flow hedges, which is
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
(OCI) and later reclassified to Statement
of Profit and Loss when the hedged item
affects profit or loss. For the purpose of
hedge accounting, hedges are classified
as cash flow hedges where group hedges
its exposure to variability in cash flows that
is attributable to foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk associated with recognised
liabilities in the financial statements.
At the inception of a hedge relationship, the
Group formally designates and documents
the hedge relationship to which the Group
wishes to apply hedge accounting and the
risk management objective and strategy for
undertaking the hedge. The documentation
includes the group’s risk management

				

			

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold
or terminated, or when a hedge no longer
meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any
cumulative deferred gain or loss and deferred
costs of hedging in equity at that time remains
in equity until the forecast transaction occurs.
When the forecast transaction is no longer
expected to occur, the cumulative gain or
loss and deferred costs of hedging that were
reported in equity are immediately reclassified
to profit or loss within other gains/(losses).

m) Retirement and other employee benefits

				Defined Contribution plan
				

Retirement benefit in the form of provident
fund is a defined contribution scheme. The
Group has no obligation, other than the
contribution payable to the provident fund.
The Group recognises contribution payable
to the provident fund scheme as an expense,
when an employee renders the related
service.

				Defined benefit plans
				

The Group operates a defined benefit gratuity
plan in India. The cost of providing benefits
under the defined benefit plan is determined
using the projected unit credit method.

				Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial
gains and losses, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability are recognised immediately
in the balance sheet with a corresponding
debit or credit to retained earnings through
OCI in the period in which they occur.
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						Equity instruments included within
the FVTPL category are measured
at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

with its assets carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

				De-recognition of financial assets
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Remeasurements are not reclassified to
Statement of Profit and Loss in subsequent
periods.

liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

				

				

				Other employee benefits

			o)

Earnings per share

				Compensated absences

				

Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders (after
deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period. The weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during
the period is adjusted for events including a
bonus issue.

				

Liability in respect of compensated absences
becoming due or expected to be availed
within one year from the balance sheet date
is recognised on the basis of undiscounted
value of estimated amount required to be paid
or estimated value of benefit expected to be
availed by the employees. Liability in respect
of compensated absences becoming due or
expected to be availed more than one year
after the balance sheet date is estimated on
the basis of an actuarial valuation performed
by an independent actuary using the
projected unit credit method.

				Other short term benefits

				 For the purpose of calculating diluted
earnings per share, the net profit or loss for
the period attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

				

Expense in respect of other short-term
benefits is recognised on the basis of amount
paid or payable for the period during which
services are rendered by the employees.

				

			n)

Provisions

Potential ordinary shares shall be treated as
dilutive when, and only when, their conversion
to ordinary shares would decrease earnings
per share or increase loss per share from
continuing operations.

			p)

Leases

				

The Group has adopted Ind AS 116-Leases
effective from April 1, 2019, using the
modified retrospective method. The Group
has applied the standard to its leases with
the cumulative impact recognised on the
date of initial application ( April 1, 2019).
Accordingly, previous period information has
not been restated.

				 Provisions are recognised when the
Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the Group expects some
or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for
example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate
asset, but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the Statement of
Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.
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Provisions are measured at the present
value of management’s best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period.
The discount rate used to determine the
present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the

				

The Group’s lease asset classes primarily
consist of leases for plant and machinery.
The Group assesses whether a contract
is or contains a lease, at inception of a
contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease
if the contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. To
assess whether a contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset, the
Group assesses whether:
(i)

the contract involves the use of an
identified asset;

				

the Group has substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the asset
through the period of the lease;

(iii) the Group has the right to direct
the use of the asset. At the date of
commencement of the lease, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU”)
and a corresponding lease liability for
all lease arrangements in which it is a
lessee, except for leases with a term
of twelve months or less (short term
leases) and leases of low value assets.
For these short term and leases of low
value assets, the Group recognises the
lease payments as an operating expense
on a straight line basis over the term
of the lease. The right-of-use assets
are initially recognised at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or prior to the commencement
date of the lease plus any initial direct
costs less any lease incentives. They
are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. Right-ofuse assets are depreciated from the
commencement date on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term
and useful life of the underlying asset.
(iv) The lease liability is initially measured
at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if not readily
determinable, using the incremental
borrowing rates. The lease liability is
subsequently remeasured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on
the lease liability, reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments
made.
(v) A lease liability is remeasured upon the
occurrence of certain events such as a
change in the lease term or a change
in an index or rate used to determine
lease payments. The remeasurement
normally also adjusts the leased assets.
Lease liability and ROU asset have been
separately presented in the Balance
Sheet and lease payments have been
classified as financing cash flows.

				q)

Business combinations

					The acquisition method of accounting
is used to account for all business
combinations, regardless of whether
equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the
					

•

fair values of the assets transferred;

					•

liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquired business;

					

•

equity interests issued by the group;
and

					

•

fair value of any asset or liability
resulting
from
a
contingent
consideration arrangement.

					Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The group
recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquired entity on an acquisitionby-acquisition basis either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.
					Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred.
					The excess of the
					•

consideration transferred;

					•

amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquired entity, and

					•

acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the
acquired entity over the fair value of
the net identifiable assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those
amounts are less than the fair value
of the net identifiable assets of the
business acquired, the difference is
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity
as capital reserve provided there
is clear evidence of the underlying
reasons for classifying the business
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combination as a bargain purchase.
In other cases, the bargain purchase
gain is recognised directly in equity
as capital reserve.
					

			r)

If the business combination is achieved
in stages, the acquisition date carrying
value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses
arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate.

				

Taxes

				Current income tax
				

profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the
carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised. Deferred
tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in
equity).

Current income tax assets and liabilities
are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used
to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date in the countries where the
Group operates and generates taxable
income.

				 Current income tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current
tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly
in equity. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits (Minimum alternate
tax credit entitlement) and any unused tax
losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable

Share based payments

				

The Group operates equity-settled sharebased remuneration plans for its employees.
None of the Group’s plans are cash-settled.

				

Where employees are rewarded using sharebased payments, the fair value of employees’
services is determined indirectly by reference
to the fair value of the equity instruments
granted. This fair value is appraised at the
grant date and excludes the impact of nonmarket vesting conditions (for example
profitability and sales growth targets and
performance conditions).

				

All share-based remuneration is ultimately
recognised as an expense in profit or loss
with a corresponding credit to equity. If
vesting periods or other vesting conditions
apply, the expense is allocated over the
vesting period, based on the best available
estimate of the number of share options
expected to vest.

				Minimum alternate tax
				

			

s)

				

Ind AS 12 defines deferred tax to include
carry forward of unused tax credits. MAT
credits are in the form of unused tax credits
that are carried forward by the entity for a
specified period of time. Accordingly, MAT
credit entitlement should be grouped with
deferred tax asset (net) in the Balance Sheet,
and a separate note should be provided
specifying the nature and amount of MAT
credit included as part of deferred tax assets.

				

				

Government grants and subsidies
Government grants are recognised where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attached conditions
will be complied with. When the grant
relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the
periods that the related costs, for which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed.
When the grant relates to an asset, it is
recognised as income in equal amounts over
the expected useful life of the related asset.

Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds
received, net of any directly attributable
transaction costs, are allocated to share
capital up to the nominal (or par) value of
the shares issued with any excess being
recorded as share premium.
For transactions between group entities,
where the options are granted to employees
of any of the group companies, the group
shall measure the services received from
its employees in accordance with the
requirements applicable to equity-settled
share-based payment transactions, and
recognise a corresponding increase in equity
as a contribution from the parent.

			u)

Segment reporting

				

Operating segments are reported in a
manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision
maker.

				Identification of segments:
				

In accordance with Ind AS 108 – Operating
Segment, the operating segments used to
present segment information are identified
on the basis of information reviewed by the
Group’s management to allocate resources to
the segments and assess their performance.
An operating segment is a component of the
Group that engages in business activities
from which it earns revenues and incurs
expenses, including revenues and expenses
that relate to transactions with any of the
Group’s other components. Results of the
operating segments are reviewed regularly by
the management team (chairman and chief
financial officer) which has been identified as
the chief operating decision maker (CODM),
to make decisions about resources to be
allocated to the segment and assess its
performance and for which discrete financial
information is available.

				Allocation of common costs:
				

Common allocable costs are allocated to
each segment accordingly to the relative
contribution of each segment to the total
common costs.

				Unallocated items:
				

Unallocated items include general corporate
income and expense items which are not
allocated to any business segment.

				Segment accounting policies
				

The Group prepares its segment information
in conformity with the accounting policies
adopted for preparing and presenting the
financial statements of the Group as a whole.

			

Cash and cash equivalents

v)

				

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance
sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand
and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

			 w) Cash dividend distribution to equity
holders
				The Group recognises a liability to make
cash distributions to equity holders when the
distribution is authorised and the distribution
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Deferred tax is provided using the liability
method on temporary differences between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
are offset if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate
to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

When the Group receives grants of nonmonetary assets, the asset and the grant are
recorded at fair value amounts and released
to profit or loss over the expected useful life
in a pattern of consumption of the benefit
of the underlying asset i.e. by equal annual
installments.

			t)

				 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the year when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

				Deferred tax
				

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised.

				

			

The evaluation of applicability of indicators of
impairment of assets requires assessment of
several external and internal factors which could
result in deterioration of recoverable amount of
the assets.

			

Defined benefit obligation (DBO)

			

Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on
a number of critical underlying assumptions such
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The valuation of finished rice involves estimations
around determination of overhead absorption
rates, rice yield from paddy and quantum of
purchased rice and manufactured rice forming
part of closing inventory. The production process
also involves ageing the paddy/ rice to achieve
the desired quality of rice and thus calculation
of holding period and determination of weighted
average borrowing cost involves management
estimation. Further, management estimates the
net realisable values of inventories including byproducts, taking into account the most reliable
evidence available at each reporting date.

41,985.73
6,533.06
(1.38)
(1,204.86)
501.21
47,813.76
7,067.79
(1,064.51)
(93.73)
53,723.31
54,156.09
54,241.41
1,583.75
323.76
(39.27)
28.22
1,896.46
271.65
(158.77)
4.53
2,013.87
975.91
957.61

2,649.98
193.32
(47.76)
76.83
2,872.37
243.39
(170.82)
26.54
2,971.48
1,626.86
124.92
(0.33)
51.41
1,802.86
17.03
(28.61)
(17.44)
1,773.84

Office
equipment
Furniture
and fixture

1,216.24
98.00
(0.29)
40.95
1,354.90
122.31
(26.74)
(14.43)
1,436.04
447.96
337.80

Refer note 56 for information on property, plant and equipment pledged as security by the Group.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of
assets
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			Inventory

B Property, plant and equipment pledged as security					

The extent to which the Holding Group can
control the timing of reversal of deferred tax
liability on undistributed profits of its subsidiaries
requires judgement.

Refer note 47(B) for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

			

A Contractual obligations					

			 Recognition of deferred tax liability on
undistributed profits

29,904.85
4,627.08
(1,094.44)
328.01
33,765.50
4,670.99
(691.83)
(68.11)
37,676.55
28,894.39
28,368.57

Management reviews its estimate of the useful
lives of depreciable/ amortisable assets at each
reporting date, based on the expected utility
of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates
relate to technical and economic obsolescence
that may change the utility of certain software,
customer relationships, IT equipment and other
plant and equipment.

6,974.65
1,237.00
100.61
8,312.26
1,705.19
(21.72)
(14.33)
9,981.40
16,741.36
17,555.69

			

16.61
7.96
(1.38)
23.19
7.96
31.15
321.21
313.25

The extent to which deferred tax assets can be
recognised is based on an assessment of the
probability of the future taxable income against
which the deferred tax assets can be utilised.

5,895.31
5,862.23

			

57,038.20
5,872.93
(1,427.81)
1,176.57
62,659.89
4,859.04
(1,777.27)
303.46
66,045.12

Useful lives of depreciable/ amortisable assets

22,051.08
2,492.39
510.15
25,053.62
2,935.85
(340.53)
(111.85)
27,537.09

			

615.67
(271.27)
344.40
344.40

Recognition of deferred tax assets

5,793.64
2.08
99.59
5,895.31
(33.08)
5,862.23

			

Gross carrying value
As at April 01, 2019
Additions
Transfer to ROU (refer note 4)
Disposals
Translation adjustment
As at March 31, 2020
Additions
Disposals
Translation adjustment
As at March 31, 2021
Accumulated depreciation
As at April 01, 2019
Charge for the year
Transfer to RoU (Refer Note 4)
Disposals
Translation adjustment
As at March 31, 2020
Charge for the year
Disposals
Translation adjustment
As at March 31, 2021
Net block as at March 31, 2020
Net block as at March 31, 2021

			 The following are significant management
judgements in applying the accounting policies of
the Group that have the most significant effect on
the financial statements.

Plant and
machinery

Management applies valuation techniques to
determine the fair value of financial instruments
(where active market quotes are not available). This
involves developing estimates and assumptions
consistent with how market participants would
price the instrument.

Building

			

Leasehold
land

Fair value measurements

Freehold
land

			

2 Property, plant and equipment

			Significant management judgements

			 Information about estimates and assumptions
that have the most significant effect on recognition
and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses is provided below. Actual results may be
different.

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

			 The preparation of the Group’s financial
statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related
disclosures.

			Significant estimates

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

		 vi) Significant management judgement in
applying accounting policies and estimation
uncertainty

as standard rates of inflation, medical cost trends,
mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future
salary increases. Variation in these assumptions
may significantly impact the DBO amount and the
annual defined benefit expense.

Vehicle

is no longer at the discretion of the Group. As
per the corporate laws in India, a distribution
is authorised when it is approved by the
shareholders. A corresponding amount is
recognised directly in equity.

2,289.63
239.26
(70.86)
3.42
2,461.45
289.69
(165.45)
(1.39)
2,584.30
879.95
846.26

for the year ended March 31, 2021

3,084.49
340.26
(88.39)
5.04
3,341.40
289.43
(198.47)
(1.80)
3,430.56

Total

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

92,859.94
9,025.90
(271.27)
(1,564.30)
1,919.58
1,01,969.85
8,344.74
(2,515.70)
165.83
1,07,964.72
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2 Property, plant and equipment (Contd..)

4 Right of use assets (Contd..)

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

C Leased assets					

Adoption of Ind AS 116 “Leases” (Contd..)
finance costs from these leases.

Leasehold land includes the following amount where Group is a lessee under a finance lease.
Particulars
Leasehold land
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Transfer to RoU (Refer Note 4)
Net carrying amount

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

-

269.89
269.89
-

Capital work-in-progress

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

3,268.00
3,268.00

1,724.96
1,724.96

Movement in capital work in progress:
Particulars
Capital work-in-progress as at
Add: Additions during the year
Less: Capitalisation during the year
Capital work-in-progress as at
Capital work-in-progress as at
Add: Additions during the year
Less: Capitalisation during the year
Capital work-in-progress as at

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:
a)

Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with a similar end
date

b)

Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term
on the date of initial application

c)

Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application

Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets

3 Capital work-in-progress
Particulars

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Amount
April 01, 2019

March 31, 2020
April 01, 2020

March 31, 2021

4,218.05
1,125.06
(3,618.15)
1,724.96
1,724.96
3,092.00
(1,548.96)
3,268.00

Capitalised borrowing cost					

Particulars
Balance as at March 31, 2019
Recognition of right of use asset as on transition
date
Reclassification on account of adoption of Ind AS
116 (Refer note 2)
Additions
Depreciation
Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2020
Additions
Depreciation
Translation reserve
Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2021
(i)

Particulars

4 Right of use assets									

Current lease liabilities
Non- current lease liabilities
Total

The Group has taken various premises on operating lease for its warehouses and office spaces. With effect from April 1,
2019, the Group has adopted Ind AS 116, ‘Leases’ retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard,
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings as on the date of initial application (April 1, 2019).
Accordingly, the Group is not required to restate the comparative information for the year ended March 31, 2019.
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Building

Land

Total

328.38

-

16,260.70

-

16,589.08

-

-

-

269.89

269.89

52.58
275.80
1,298.94
158.12
(0.71)
1,415.91

238.61
4.49
(0.04)
234.08

11,884.76
1,920.66
26,224.80
2,841.27
(395.42)
22,988.11

180.90
9.09
441.70
86.47
23.20
504.97

12,065.66
1,982.33
26,942.30
1,624.01
3,027.06
(396.17)
25,143.07

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

3,740.94
24,278.61
28,019.55

2,887.62
24,920.13
27,807.75

The Group has leases for plant and machinery, Vehicle, Building and land. With the exception of short-term leases and leases of
low-value underlying assets, each lease is reflected on the balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. The Group has
considered automatic extension option available for building leases in lease period assessment since the Group can enforce its right
to extend the lease beyond the initial lease period.

(ii) Nature of the Group leasing activities by type of right-of-use asset recognised on balance sheet:
Right to use
Range of remaining lease term
Number of lease with extention options
Number of lease with termination option

Plant and
machinery

Vehicle

Building

Land

0.67-6 years
(1-2 years)
5
(3)
(-)

4 years
(Nil)
1
(Nil)
(-)

5-8.5 years
(9-16 years)
4
(4)
(-)

5-95 years
(7 years)
3
(2)
(-)

215

Financial Statements

“As a result of initially applying Ind AS 116, in relation to the leases that were previously classified as operating leases, on April
01, 2019, the Group has recognised, a lease liability amounting to H 17,024.34 measured at the present value of the remaining
lease payments. Correspondingly the Group has also recognised right-of-Use (RoU) asset amounting to H 16,589.08 at its
carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the lease commencement date but discounted using the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate as at April 1, 2019, adjusted for the prepaid or accrued lease payment amounting to H 52.61 that
existed at the date of transition. This has resulted in an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings amounting to
H 487.88. As at March 31, 2020 H 26,942.30 of Right-of-use assets and H 27,807.75 of lease liabilities is recognised. Also, in
relation to those leases under Ind AS 116, the Group has recognised depreciation and finance cost, instead of operating lease
expense. During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Group recognised H 1,982.32 of depreciation charges and H 824.00 of

		

Vehicle

The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities				

The borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended March 31, 2021 was Nil (March 31, 2020: H 73.64).

Adoption of Ind AS 116 “Leases”

Plant and
machinery

LT Foods Limited
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4 Right of use assets (Contd..)

6 Investments accounted for using the equity method

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Adoption of Ind AS 116 “Leases” (Contd..)

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

(iii) The following are amounts recognised in profit or loss:			
Particulars
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets
Interest expense on lease liabilities
iv)

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

3,027.06
1,069.40

1,982.32
824.00

Total cash outflow for leases for the year ended March 31, 2021 was H 3,529.07 (March 31, 2020 was
H 2,003.10).

5 Intangible assets
Description
Gross carrying value
As at April 01, 2019
Additions
Translation adjustment
As at March 31, 2020
Additions
Translation adjustment
As at March 31, 2021
Accumulated
amortisation
As at April 01, 2019
Amortisation for the year
Translation adjustment
As at March 31, 2020
Amortisation for the year
Disposals
Translation adjustment
As at March 31, 2021
Net block as at March
31, 2020
Net block as at March
31, 2021

Goodwill

Brand /
Trademarks

Customer
relationships

Non
compete
agreement

5,711.82
873.74
6,585.56
(326.43)
6,259.13

5,352.45
5,352.45
(143.93)
5,208.52

381.00
150.81
531.81
40.41
572.22

920.17
49.59
969.76
10.24
980.00

Intellectual
property

Computer
software

Total

1,350.09
169.80
1,519.89
36.35
1,556.24

1,105.46
11.89
1,117.35
98.83
1,216.18

14,820.99
11.89
1,243.94
16,076.82
98.83
(383.35)
15,792.31

b) In joint venture
- Daawat Kameda India Private Limited
		 24,056,359 (March 31, 2020: 24,056,359) equity shares of H10 each
Investments carried at cost*

3,295.38
326.91
419.24
4,041.53
212.97
(149.49)
4,105.01
2,544.03

266.98
6.87
273.85
212.30
2.94
489.09
5,078.60

101.83
40.15
(0.46)
141.51
42.05
0.58
184.14
390.30

267.26
133.07
(13.89)
386.45
62.92
0.36
449.73
583.31

626.54
80.05
(22.37)
684.22
209.97
4.89
899.08
835.67

1,016.52
34.79
1,051.31
13.48
1,064.79
66.03

5,574.51
621.84
382.53
6,578.88
753.69
(140.72)
7,191.85
9,497.94

2,154.12

4,719.43

388.08

530.27

657.16

151.40

8,600.46

As at
March 31, 2020

450.81

457.85

372.68

389.36

50.33
873.82

847.21

1,543.08
1,543.08
2,416.90

2,000.88
2,000.88
2,848.09

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

455.04
0.21
0.05
455.30

352.29
0.21
135.05
487.55

455.04

352.29

0.21

0.21

-

135.00

0.05

0.05

0.05
455.30

135.05
487.55

0.21
0.21
455.09
455.30

0.21
0.21
487.34
487.55

* Refer reconciliation to carrying values of investment in associates and joint venture in note 57

7 Non-current investments
Particulars
Investments at fair value through Profit and Loss
Key man insurance policies
Equity instruments - Quoted
Equity instruments - Unquoted
Details of investment is as follows:
Investments at fair value through Profit and Loss
Keyman insurance policies
		 Equity instruments - Quoted
		 Fully paid-up equity shares (quoted)
		 2,300 (March 31, 2020: 2,300) equity shares - Andhra bank of H10 each
fully paid up
Equity instruments - Unquoted
Fully paid-up equity shares (unquoted)
		 Nil (March 31, 2020: 1,350,000) equity shares of Express Warehousing
Limited of H 10 each
		 500 (March 31, 2020: 500) equity shares of India International Marketing
Limited of H 10 each

Aggregate amount of :
Quoted investments
Market value of quoted investments
Unquoted investments
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The goodwill is related to subsidiary Company, LT Overseas North America, Inc., which is identified as Cash generating unit (CGU)
for the purpose of impairment testing. The goodwill has been evaluated based on the cashflow forecasts of the related cash
generating unit (CGU) and the recoverable amounts of these CGU exceeded their carrying amounts. The estimated value in use
of cash generating units (CGU) is based on the future cash flows using annual growth rate of up to 5% for future period of 5 years
and weighted average cost of capital is 1.95%, the terminal growth rate is considered as up to 1%. An analysis of the sensitivity
of the computation to a change in key parameters (operating margin, discount rates and long term average growth rate), based
on reasonable probable assumptions, did not identify any probable scenario in which the recoverable amount of the CGU would
decrease below its carrying amount. The discount rate was estimated based on past experience and average weighted average
cost of capital of the CGU/Market to which assessment is done. The values assigned to the key assumptions represent the
management’s assessment of future trends in the industry and based on both internal and external factors.
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Investments carried at cost (unquoted)
Investments in associates and joint venture
(a) In associate companies
- Raghuvesh Warehousing Private Limited
		 1,600,000 (March 31, 2020: 1,600,000) equity shares of H10 each
- Raghuvesh Agri Foods Private Limited
		 1,600,000 (March 31, 2020: 1,600,000) equity shares of H10 each
- Raghuvesh Infrastructure Private Limited
		 15,000 (March 31, 2020: 15,000) equity shares of H 10 each

As at
March 31, 2021

LT Foods Limited
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8 Loans

10 Deferred tax asset/liability (net)

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
Security deposits
Loans and advances to related parties
Loan to employees

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

1,260.63
198.97
35.44
1,495.04

916.72
94.51
1,011.23

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

1,495.04
1,495.04

1,011.23
1,011.23

Break-up of security details
Particulars
Loans considered good-Secured
Loans considered good-Unsecured
Loan which have significant increase in credit risk
Loans- credit impaired
*Includes receivables from related parties (refer note 52)

Raghuvesh Agri Foods Private Limited
Raghuvesh Warehousing Private Limited

185.45
13.52

-

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

0.99
13,410.53
220.06
13,631.58

0.99
13,410.53
755.55
14,167.06

9 Other non-current financial assets
Particulars
Derivative component of compound financial instrument
Receivable from insurance Company**
Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months*

* H 147.71 (March 31, 2020: H 755.55) represents deposits with maturity more than 12 months, held by the Group and are not available for use by the Group, as these
are pledged.
** The Group has Insurance claim recoverable (classified into non-current assets) amounting to H 13,410.53 as at March 31, 2021. The claim is attributable to the loss
of raw material, incurred by the Group, due to major fire which had occurred in the works premises of the Subsidiary Company in India in FY 2014-15. The Group
had recognized the insurance claim recoverable (asset) amounting to H 17,810.88 in FY 2014-15, based on management’s assessment of loss amount and positive
outcome in the surveyors’ reports then appointed by the Insurance Agency. Later on, the Insurance Agency repudiated the insurance claim vide its order dated
February 4, 2016, against which the Subsidiary Company had filed a civil suit with District Court of Raisen, Bhopal, the outcome of which is pending. On the basis of
developments in the case including the surveyor’s report (subsequent to reports submitted by surveyors appointed by the Insurance Agency during the initial phase and
which were the basis for the Group to recognize such asset), the Group had written off claim amounting to H 4,400 in FY 2015-16. The Group, based on management’s
assessment of facts of the case and opinion obtained from the external legal counsels, has concluded that it holds merits and good probability to win the case, as the
claim has irregularly been repudiated.

Refer note 49 - Fair value disclosures for disclosure of fair value in respect of financial assets measured at amortised cost and note
50 - Financial risk management for assessment of expected credit losses.

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
On temporary difference between the book base and tax base
Deferred tax assets arising on account of
Property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets
Provision for employee benefits
Impairment of trade receivables
Ind AS 116 impact
Loss on sale of investment
Impairment in value of investment
Unrealised foreign exchange loss on forward contracts
Deferred rent
Unrealised profit on inventory
Unabsorbed losses
Others
Deferred tax liabilities arising on account of
Keyman insurance policy
Unrealised foreign exchange gain on forward contracts
Deferred tax assets (net)
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
On temporary difference between the book base and tax base
Deferred tax liability arising on account of:
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Key man insurance policy
Unrealised foreign exchange gain on forward contracts
Deferred tax asset arising on account of:
Provision for employee benefits
Impairment of trade receivables
Ind AS 116 impact
Deferred government grant
Deferred tax liabilities (net)

As at
March 31, 2020

358.72
35.89
165.30
72.14
170.78
671.81
634.32
494.09
2,603.05

363.27
119.46
390.38
59.56
31.33
92.56
496.35
118.92
547.50
1,012.24
230.22
3,461.79

34.31
206.83
241.14
2,361.91

85.78
85.78
3,376.01

419.16
77.94
104.46
601.56

188.38
188.38

79.90
23.86
34.25
53.27
191.28
410.28

188.38

Movement in deferred tax assets (net)
Particulars

Recognised Recognised
in other in statement
comprehensive of profit and
income
loss

April 01,
2019

Translation
adjustment

March
31, 2020

34.49

-

-

140.40

174.89

216.66
116.74
115.64

-

45.85
-

(143.05)
273.63
59.56
31.33
(23.08)

119.46
390.38
59.56
31.33
92.56
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Deferred tax assets arising on account of
Property, plant and equipment, investment
property and intangible assets
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for doubtful debts
Ind AS 116 impact
Loss on sale of investment
Impairment in value of investment
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10 Deferred tax asset/liability (net) (Contd..)

11 Other non -current assets

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Movement in deferred tax assets (net) (Contd..)
Particulars
Unrealised foreign exchange loss on forward
contracts
Minimum alternate tax
Deferred rent
Unrealised profit on inventory
Unabsorbed losses
Others
Deferred tax liabilities arising on
account of
Keyman insurance policy
Unrealised foreign exchange gain on forward
contracts
Net Deferred tax assets

Particulars

Particulars
Recognised Recognised
in other in statement
comprehensive of profit and
income
loss

April 01,
2019

Translation
adjustment

-

-

970.29

(473.94)

496.35

3.54
14.64
426.88
701.95
1,630.55

250.40
250.40

1,016.14

(3.54)
104.27
120.63
1,012.24
(722.13)
376.32

118.92
547.50
1,012.24
230.22
3,273.41

83.15
685.55

-

-

2.63
(685.55)

85.78
-

768.70
861.85

250.40

1,016.14

(682.92)
1,059.24

85.78
3,187.63

April 01,
2020

Translation
adjustment

Recognised
in other
comprehensive
income

Recognised
in statement
of profit and
loss

March
31, 2020

March
31,
2021

Deferred tax assets arising on
account of
Property, plant and equipment, investment
property and intangible assets

174.89

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for doubtful debts

(5.37)

-

(60.44)

119.46

-

390.38

5.84

(12.42)

8.75

115.79

-

(207.06)

Ind AS 116 impact

59.56

189.16

-

-

(25.31)

34.25

Loss on sale of investment

31.33

-

-

(31.33)

-

Impairment in value of investment

92.56

2.12

-

(22.54)

72.14

496.35

-

(452.92)

(43.43)

-

-

-

-

53.27

53.27

Deferred rent

118.92

-

-

51.86

170.78

Unrealised profit on inventory

547.50

-

-

124.31

671.81

26.13

-

(404.05)

634.32

230.22

64.63

-

199.24

494.09

3,273.41

93.35

(465.34)

(526.25)

2,375.17

85.78

-

-

26.47

112.25

-

-

311.29

-

311.29

85.78

-

311.29

26.47

423.54

3,187.63

93.35

(776.63)

(552.72)

1,951.63

Deferred government grant

Unabsorbed losses
Others

1,012.24

Deferred tax liabilities arising on
account of
Keyman insurance policy
Unrealised foreign exchange gain on
forward contracts
Net Deferred tax assets
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Prepaid expenses
Capital advances (considered good -Unsecured)
Interest accrued and due on advance for property

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

27.77
785.84
39.36
852.97

20.16
639.23
659.39

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

4,135.19
4,135.19

3,919.89
3,919.89

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

52,623.00
87,960.68
182.63
68,820.15

51,304.49
62,892.41
164.96
46,723.75

5,841.81
806.75
3,018.52
2,879.36
148.51
2,22,281.41

6,510.70
968.44
2,845.94
3,408.98
202.99
1,75,022.66

12 Non-current tax assets
Particulars
Income tax assets (Net of provisions)

13 Inventories
Particulars
Raw material* (Refer Note (a) below)
Semi-finished goods* (Refer Note (a) below)
Work-in-progress*
Finished goods* (including goods in transit of H 8,072.64 (March 31, 2020: H
9,268.58)
Traded goods
Stores and spares
Packing material
Bardana
Others
* The interest capitalised as at March 31, 2021 is H 3,125.58 (March 31, 2020 H 3,384.78).

Note (a):- Includes Inventory lying with third parties (“Suppliers”) on behalf of the Company and its subsidiary Company amounting
to H 18,710.63 (March 31, 2020: H Nil) under agency relationship against which Company and its subsidiary Company had paid
advance amounting to H 3,779.18 and remaining amount of H 14,931.45 is classified under trade payables as at March 31, 2021.

14 Trade receivables
Particulars
Trade receivables*
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

49,419.69
(747.16)
48,672.53

62,691.68
(728.37)
61,963.31
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(229.96)

Unrealised foreign exchange loss on
forward contracts

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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14 Trade receivables (Contd..)

16 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Break-up of security details
Particulars
Trade receivables considered good - Secured
Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured
Trade receivables - credit impaired
Total
Loss allowance
Total trade receivables

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

48,672.53
747.16
49,419.69
(747.16)
48,672.53

61,963.31
728.37
62,691.68
(728.37)
61,963.31

13.38
3,074.89
109.35
38.21
-

11.11
0.41
2,837.24
75.91
26.81
21.83

* Includes receivables from related parties (refer note 52)

Oswal Woollen Mills Limited
Raghuvesh Warehousing Private Limited
Global Foods Trading Gmbh
Sidhu Food B.V.
Daawat Kameda India Private Limited
L T F Food Trading LLC

Transferred receivables							
The carrying amounts of trade receivables include receivables which are subject to a factoring arrangement. Under this arrangement,
the Group has transferred the relevant receivables to the factor in exchange for cash and its prevented from selling or pledging
the receivables. However, the Group has retained late payment and credit risk. The Group therefore continues to recognise the
transferred assets in their entirety in its balance sheet. The amount repayable under the factoring agreement is presented as
secured borrowing. The Group considers the held to collect business model to remain appropriate for these receivables and hence
continues measuring them at amortised cost.

Unpaid dividend accounts (earmarked)
Deposits with original maturity more than 3 months and less than 12 months

(i)

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

-

1,086.31
1,086.31

(ii)

Refer note 49 - Fair value disclosures for disclosure of fair value in respect of financial assets measured at amortised cost and
note 50 - Financial risk management for assessment of expected credit losses.

17 Loans
Particulars
Security deposits
Loans and advances to others*
Loan to employees

As at
March 31, 2020

251.64
225.00
145.30
621.94

159.37
573.58
151.45
884.40

100.00
125.00

328.49
245.09

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

621.94
621.94

884.40
884.40

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

1,234.28
7.04
323.89
1,214.71
80.62
99.86
2,960.40

10.73
1.01
1.28
170.01
573.44
360.25
1,116.72

*Includes inter corporate deposits recoverable from related parties (refer note 52)

Raghuvesh Agri Foods Private Limited
Raghuvesh Warehousing Private Limited

Loans considered good-Secured
Loans considered good-Unsecured
Loan which have significant increase in credit risk
Loans- credit impaired

As at
March 31, 2020

1,599.64
85.07
1,684.71

1,755.00
158.61
1,913.61

Particulars
Derivative assets
Advances recoverable in cash
Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits
Subvention on interest expense receivable
Export incentive recoverable
Margin money recoverable
Insurance claim recoverable
Others
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As at
March 31, 2021

Note: There are no repatriation restrictions with respect to cash and bank balances as at the end of the reporting year and
comparative year.
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As at
March 31, 2021

18 Other current financial assets

15 Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks in current accounts
Cash on hand

38.88
539.32
578.20

H 1,155.19 (March 31, 2020: H 539.32) represents deposits with original maturity more than 3 months and remaining maturity
less than 12 months, held by the Group and are not available for use by the Group, as these are pledged.

No trade receivables are due from Director or other officers of the Group either severally or jointly with any other persons.

Particulars

33.51
1,278.82
1,312.33

(i)

Particulars

Total transferred receivables
Associated secured borrowing

As at
March 31, 2020

Break-up of security details

The relevant carrying amounts are as follows:

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021
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19 Other current assets

20 Share capital (Contd..)

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

3,175.15
372.19
1,689.44
273.91
11,996.03
17,506.72

3,241.18
975.78
1,236.90
345.91
15,964.45
21,764.22

139.18

104.56

Prepaid expenses
Staff advances
Balances with government authorities
Advances recoverable in kind
Advance to suppliers

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the group (Contd..)
Particulars
Mr. Ashwani Kumar Arora
Mr. Surinder Kumar Arora
Mr. Gurucharan Dass Arora
Mr. Ashok Kumar Arora
Raghuvesh Holdings Private Limited
Mr. Vijay Kumar Arora
DSP Investment Managers Private Limited

* Includes receivables from related parties (refer note 52)

Gursajan Arora

20 Share capital
Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

3,600.00

3,600.00

3,198.45

3,198.45

3,198.45

3,198.45

Authorised
360,000,000 Equity shares of H 1 each (March 31, 2020 : 360,000,000 equity
shares of H 1 each)
Issued, subscribed and paid up
319,844,780 equity shares of H 1 each (March 31, 2020 : 319,844,780 equity
shares of H 1 each)

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
Particulars
Equity shares at the beginning of the year
Changes during the year
Equity shares at the end of the year

As at March 31, 2021
No of shares
Amount
3,198.45
3,198.45

3,198.45
3,198.45

As at March 31, 2020
No of shares
Amount
3,198.45
3,198.45

3,198.45
3,198.45

(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having the par value of H 1 per share (March 31, 2020: H1 per share). Each
holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting.
During the year ended March 31, 2021 the amount of per share dividend recognised as distributions to equity shareholders
was H 1 per share (March 31, 2020: H 0.65 per share).

224

2,29,86,920
2,29,86,920
2,12,86,920
2,29,86,920
3,33,84,472
2,29,86,920
1,10,83,075
15,77,02,147

7.19%
7.19%
6.66%
7.19%
10.44%
7.19%
3.47%
49.33%

As at March 31, 2020
No of shares
% holding
2,29,86,920
2,29,86,920
2,12,86,920
2,29,86,920
3,33,49,472
2,29,86,920
1,61,73,684
16,27,57,756

7.19%
7.19%
6.66%
7.19%
10.43%
7.19%
5.06%
50.91%

(d) The Company has not issued any equity shares pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash, allotted as fully
paid up by way of bonus issues and brought back during the last five years.

21 Other equity
Particulars
(i)

Retained earnings
Opening balance
Add: Net profit for the current year
- Remeasurements of post-employment benefits obligation (net of taxes)
Impact on account of adoption of Ind AS 116
Less : Equity dividend *
Less : Corporate dividend tax

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

95,690.94
27,404.90
44.00
(3,198.38)
1,19,941.46

80,341.26
18,450.42
(106.53)
(487.88)
(2,078.99)
(427.34)
95,690.94

*During the year, the Board of Directors of the Company have declared and approved interim dividend amounting to H 319,844,780, which have been duly paid.
The amount is disclosed in H Lakhs and rounded off appropriately in Consolidated statement of changes in equity..

(ii) General reserve
Opening balance
Change during the year
Closing balance
(iii) Securities premium reserve
Opening balance
Change during the year
Closing balance
iv) Cash flow hedge reserve
Opening balance
Change during the year
Closing balance
v) Foreign currency translation reserve
Opening balance
Change during the year
Closing balance
Total other equity

1,816.80
1,816.80

1,816.80
1,816.80

44,456.10
44,456.10

44,456.10
44,456.10

(2,454.43)
3,285.76
831.33

1,445.18
(3,899.61)
(2,454.43)

5,425.51
(120.99)
5,304.52
1,72,350.21

1,654.38
3,771.13
5,425.51
1,44,934.92
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In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company, after payment of all liabilities. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.

As at March 31, 2021
No of shares
% holding
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21 Other equity (Contd..)

23 Long term borrowings (Contd..)

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Nature and purpose of other reserves					
Name of the bank

General reserve:					
The Group has transferred a portion of the net profit before declaring dividend to general reserve pursuant to the earlier provision
of Companies Act 1956. Mandatory transfer to general reserve is not required under the Companies Act 2013.
Foreign currency translation reserve					
Exchange differences arising on translation of the foreign operations are recognised in other comprehensive income as described
in accounting policy and accumulated in a separate reserve within equity. The cumulative amount is reclassified to Statement of
Profit and Loss when the net investment is disposed-off.
Cash flow hedging reserve 					
The cash flow hedging reserve is used to recognise the effective portion of gains or losses on derivatives that are designated and
qualify as cash flow hedges.

22 Non-controlling interests
Particulars
Opening balance
Share of profit for the year
Share of other comprehensive income for the year
Closing balance

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

11,784.90
1,502.91
188.78
13,476.59

10,542.28
1,480.07
(237.35)
11,784.90

23 Long term borrowings
Particulars
Secured:
Term loans
From banks
Vehicle loans
From banks
From others
Unsecured:
Term loans
From banks
Liability component of compound financial instrument - net of transaction
costs*

As at
March 31, 2020

19,133.75

20,499.78

144.59
-

160.01
13.38

977.40
2,709.43

2,339.06

22,965.17

23,012.23

3,580.14
50.08
3,630.22
26,595.39

2,728.38
90.14
2,818.52
25,830.75

* In one of the subsidiary Company, Nature Bio Foods Limited, during the previous year ended 2018-2019, the subsidiary Company had issued 2,398,000 number of
0.01% cumulative compulsory convertible preference shares (CCCPS) having face value of H 10 at a premium of H 240 through private placement of shares. Out of the
total, 2,374,020 CCCPS were subscribed by India Agri Business Fund II and 23,980 CCCPS were subscribed by Real Trust II, CCCPS carries cumulative dividend of
0.01% p.a. CCCPS shall be converted into equity shares and in any event at the expiry of 8 year from the Tranche I completion date. As at March 31, 2021, H 3,952.90
(March 31, 2020 : H 3,952.90) considered as equity component , H 2,695.23 (March 31, 2020 : H 2,339.06) considered as liability component and H 0.99 (March 31,
2020 : H 0.99) considered as derivative component. The remaining amount of H 14.20 (March 31, 2020: Nil) pertains to other subsidiary Company in the Group.
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Rabobank (refer point A part (ii) for interest
rate and refer point C part (vii) for security)

Punjab National Bank (refer point A part (i)
for interest rate and refer point C part (viii) for
security)
b) Vehicle loans
(refer point A part (iii) for interest rate
and point C part (ix) for security)"
HDFC Bank
HDFC Bank
ICICI Bank
Yes Bank
Toyota Financial Services India Limited
Oriental Bank of Commerce
Daimler Financial Services India Private
Limited
HDFC Bank
Yes Bank
Bank of Baroda

As at
March 31,
2020

240.00

900.00

-

47 equal
quarterly

389.09

15,741.74

17,902.67

180 equal
monthly

6.58

264.36

290.34

18 equal
monthly EMI

23.33

140.00

-

18 equal
monthly EMI

67.00

1,065.55

-

Bullet
payment on
February 14,
2021
96 monthly

-

-

216.21

4,202.24

4,818.94

400.00

-

22,713.89

23,228.16

Total amount
of instalment

60 equal
monthly

18 equal
monthly EMI

0.21 Euro
monthly till July
01, 2018 and
thereafter 0.91
Euro
23.63

36 - 60 equal
monthly
36 - 48 equal
monthly
60 equal
monthly
60 equal
monthly
36 equal
monthly
60 equal
monthly
36 - 48 equal
monthly

1.41

39.21

49.37

2.12

8.62

33.95

1.99

87.14

-

1.04

33.32

42.30

0.63

-

6.59

1.67

-

13.20

4.05

-

45.73

37 equal
monthly
37 equal
monthly
48 equal
monthly

1.50

15.72

47.29

0.60

2.13

10.21

0.49

8.53

14.90

194.67

263.54
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Current maturities of long-term borrowings (Refer note 30)
Term loans
Vehicle loans

As at
March 31, 2021

a) Term loans
Indusind Bank (refer point A part (i) for interest
rate and refer point C part (i) for security)
Rabobank (refer point A part (ii) for interest
rate and refer point C part (ii) for security)
Mashreq Bank (refer point A part (ii) for interest
rate and refer point C part (iii) for security)
Punjab National Bank (refer point A part (i)
for interest rate and refer point C part (iv) for
security)
State Bank of India (refer point A part (i) for
interest rate and refer point C part (v) for
security)
STCI Finance Limited (refer point A part (i)
for interest rate and refer point C part (vi) for
security)

As at
March 31,
2021

No of
instalments
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23 Long term borrowings (Contd..)

23 Long term borrowings (Contd..)

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Name of the bank
c) Unsecured term loan
Mechanics Bank (refer point A part (iv) for
interest rate)

No of
instalments

18 equal
monthly EMI

Total amount
of instalment

As at
March 31,
2021

As at
March 31,
2020

55.01

977.40

-

23,885.96

23,491.70

A. Details of interest rate for each type of borrowings”					
i.

ii.

The interest on above Rupee term loans from banks are linked to the respective banks base rates/MCLR which are
floating in nature. As of March 31, 2021 the interest rates ranges from 6.50% to 10.75% per annum (March 31, 2020:
10.50% to 13.15% per annum).					
The interest on above foreign currency term loans from banks are linked to the LIBOR/EIBOR which are floating in nature.
As of March 31, 2021 the interest rates ranges from LIBOR plus 1.5% to 1.75% per annum (March 31, 2020: LIBOR plus
1.5% to 2.5% per annum) and EIBOR plus 4.99% per annum (March 31, 2020: EIBOR plus 4.99% per annum)		
			

iii.

The interest on above vehicle loans from banks and financial institutions are linked to the respective base rates/MCLR
which are fixed in nature. As of March 31, 2021 the interest rates ranges from 7.95% to 9.71% per annum (March 31,
2020: 7.95% to 11.35% per annum).					

iv.

The interest on above unsecured term loan from bank is 1% on simple interest basis.

B. Details of guarantee for each type of borrowings”
Guaranteed by few of the Directors
Term loans
From banks
From others

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

2,505.56
2,505.56

216.21
216.21

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

C. Details of security for each type of borrowing : (Contd..)
(iv) Rupee term loan from Punjab National Bank amounting to H 140.00 (previous year: Nil) availed by the Raghunath Agro
Industries Private Limited (Subsidiary Company) is secured against land, building, inventory, trade receivables of the
subsidiary Company and Corporate Guarantee and personal guarantee of few of the Directors of the Company and few
of their relatives.
(v) Rupee term loan from State Bank of India amounting to H 1065.55 (previous year: Nil) availed by the Daawat Foods Limited
(Subsidiary Company) is secured against first pari passu charge with other banks on reciprocal basis on the entire current
assets of the Subsidiary Company existing as well as future and second pari passu charge on reciprocal basis on the
entire fixed assets (present as well as future) of the Subsidiary Company, Corporate Guarantee and personal guarantee
of few of the Directors of the Company and few of their relatives. 					
(vi) Rupee term loan from STCI Finance Limited amounting to Nil (previous year: H 216.21) availed by the Daawat Foods Limited
(Subsidiary Company) was secured against pledge of shares held by and corporate guarantee of Raghuvesh Holdings
Private Limited in which Directors are interested. It is further secured by personal guarantee of few of the Directors of the
Company and few of their relatives.
(vii) Euro Term loan amounting to Euro 57.17 (previous year: Euro 63.69) equivalent H 4,202.24 (previous year: H 4,818.94) from
Rabobank as availed by LT Foods Europe B.V. (Subsidiary Company) is secured by mortgage against real estate, trade
receivables including inter Company receivables, inventory and cash and bank and Corporate Guarantee of LT Overseas
North America, Inc.
(viii) Rupee term loan from Punjab National Bank amounting to H 400 (previous year : Nil) availed by the Daawat Foods Limited
(Subsidiary Company) is secured against first pari passu charge with other banks on reciprocal basis on the entire current
assets of the Subsidiary Company existing as well as future and second pari passu charge on reciprocal basis on the
entire fixed assets (present as well as future) of the Subsidiary Company, Corporate Guarantee and personal guarantee
of few of the Directors of the Company and few of their relatives. 					
(ix) Vehicle loans from all banks are secured against hypothecation of respective motor vehicle financed
Refer note 56 for assets pledged as security					

D. Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:
The changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from financing activities can be classified as follows:

C. Details of security for each type of borrowing : 					
(i)

(ii)

Rupee term loan from Indusind Bank amounting to H 900.00 (previous year: Nil) availed by the Ecopure Specialities
Limited (Subsidiary Company) is secured against charge on movable and immovable fixed asset (both current and future)
of the Subsidiary Company, Corporate Guarantee and personal guarantee of few of the Directors of the Company and
few of their relatives.

(iii) AED Term loan from Mashreq Bank amounting AED 13.68 (previous year: AED 14.86) equivalent H 264.36 (previous year:
H 290.34) availed by LT Foods Middle East DMCC (Subsidiary Company) is secured by office property and undated
cheques of the subsidiary Company.			
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Net debt as at April 01, 2019
Cash movement:
- Proceeds
- Repayment
- Interest paid
Non cash movement
Addition during the year
- Impact of currency restatement
- Interest expense
- Interest capitalised
Net debt as at March 31, 2020

Total

-

26,976.40

1,42,464.12

1,69,440.52

(2,003.10)
-

3,642.46
(4,788.11)
(627.66)

2,45,774.88
(2,65,810.53)
(12,465.23)

2,49,417.34
(2,72,601.74)
(13,092.89)

28,986.85
824.00
27,807.75

627.66
25,830.75

1,222.03
11,775.38
73.64
1,23,034.29

28,986.85
1,222.03
13,227.04
73.64
1,76,672.79
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USD Term loan amounting to USD 214.16 (previous year: USD 227.46) equivalent H 15,741.74 (previous year: H 17,902.67)
from Rabobank as availed by LT Foods America Inc. (Subsidiary Company) is secured by mortgage against Plant and
machinery, real estate located in US, trade receivables including inter Company receivables, inventory and cash and bank
and Corporate Guarantee of LT Overseas North America, Inc.

Particulars

Liabilities from financing activities
Lease
Long term
Short term
borrowings*
borrowings*
Liability
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23 Long term borrowings (Contd..)

27 Other non-current liabilities

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

D. Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: (Contd..)
Particulars
Net debt as at April 01, 2020
Cash movement:
- Proceeds
- Repayment
- Interest paid
Non cash movement
Addition during the year
- Other adjustments
- Impact of currency restatement
- Interest expense
Net debt as at March 31, 2021

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Liabilities from financing activities
Lease
Long term
Short term
Liability
borrowings*
borrowings*

Total

27,807.75

25,830.75

1,23,034.29

1,76,672.79

(2,459.67)
(1,069.40)

3,583.16
(2,818.52)
(660.10)

2,58,435.75
(2,78,194.81)
(7,158.32)

2,62,018.91
(2,83,473.00)
(8,887.82)

1,624.01
1,047.46
1,069.40
28,019.55

660.10
26,595.39

(659.59)
7,009.72
1,02,467.04

1,624.01
1,047.46
(659.59)
8,739.22
1,57,081.98

* Including Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

Deferred government grant
Deferred rent

Particulars
Security deposits from distributors

6.50
6.50

7.00
7.00

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

24,278.61
24,278.61

24,920.13
24,920.13

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

743.78
264.01
48.84
1,056.63

436.61
159.13
40.33
636.07

25 Lease liabilities
Particulars
Lease liabilities (refer note 4)

26 Long-term provisions
Particulars
Provisions for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity
Provision for compensated absences
Employee's end of service benefits

For disclosures related to provision for employee benefits, refer note 48- Employee benefit obligations
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214.44
214.44

286.37
410.26
696.63

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Secured
From banks
Working capital loans
Packing credit in foreign currency
Foreign currency loans
Bills discounted

51,333.06
41,387.51
9,647.74
1,02,368.31

87,077.22
34,623.43
1,086.31
1,22,786.96

i)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

a) working capital loans
The working capital loans are secured by hypothecation of current assets
including inventories and trade receivables, charge over the office property,
land and building, moveable fixed assets except vehicle financed of the
Company and few subsidiary companies who has availed the said facility.
These are also secured by personal guarantee of few of the Directors of
the Company and few of their relatives. In addition, the loans availed by few
subsidiary companies are secured by corporate guarantee of the Company.

51,333.06

87,077.22

The working capital loans are repayable on demand and the interest on
the above loans from banks are linked to the respective bank base rates
MCLR/Libor which are floating in nature. The interest ranges from 3.51% to
12.55% per annum (March 31, 2020: 8.80% to 13.00%) on rupee working
capital loan and Libor + 150 basis points to Libor + 175 basis points (March
31, 2020: Libor/Euribor + 150 basis points to Libor/Euribor + 175 basis) on
working capital loans obtained by foreign subsidiaries.”
b) Packing credit in foreign currency
“The packing credit in foreign currency loans are secured by hypothecation
of current assets including inventories and trade receivables, charge over
the office property, land and building, moveable fixed assets except vehicle
financed of the Company and few subsidiary companies who has availed
the said facility. These are also secured by personal guarantee of few of the
Directors of the Company and few of their relatives. In addition, the loans
availed by few subsidiary companies are secured by corporate guarantee of
the Company.

41,387.51

34,623.43

Financial Statements

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2020

28 Short-term borrowings

24 Other non-current financial liabilities
As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2021

The interest rate ranges from Libor + 190 basis points to Libor + 350 basis
points (March 31, 2020: Libor + 200 basis points to Libor + 350 basis).
c) Foreign currency loans
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28 Short-term borrowings (Contd..)

29 Trade payables (Contd..)

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

i)

Particulars
The foreign currency loans are secured by hypothecation of current
assets including inventories and trade receivables, charge over the
office property, land and building, moveable fixed assets except vehicle
financed of the Company and few subsidiary companies who has availed
the said facility. These are also secured by personal guarantee of few of
the Directors of the Company and few of their relatives. In addition, the
loans availed by few subsidiary companies are secured by corporate
guarantee of the Company.
The interest rate on the above loans from banks are linked to the
respective Libor/MCLR which are floating in nature. The interest rate
ranges from 2.75% to 4.81% (March 31, 2020: Nil) in case of foreign
currency loans.
d) Bills discounted
Factored receivables is secured by first charge on trade receivables
subject to factoring arrangements.

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

9,647.74

-

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

a) Due to micro, small and medium enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 to the extent information available with the
management is given below: (Contd..)
Particulars
iv)
v)
vi)

-

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in payments
(which have been paid but beyond the due date during the year) but
without adding the interest specified under the Act.
Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of
accounting period.
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as
a deductible expenditure under section 23 of this Act.

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

0.57

-

1.97

3.75

-

-

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

3,630.22
98.73
11.57
51.65
2,851.69
6,643.86

2,818.52
247.33
11.50
38.88
1,973.23
4,601.30
9,690.76

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

3,740.94
3,740.94

2,887.62
2,887.62

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

5,587.19
681.82
37.59
1,822.90
8,129.50

5,810.25
577.99
44.19
2,015.46
8,447.89

8.28
8.07

0.14
0.09

1,086.31

30 Other current financial liabilities
Refer note 56 for assets pledged as security

Particulars

29 Trade payables
Particulars
Dues to
Micro and small enterprises
Others

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

861.07
49,494.43
50,355.50

589.11
25,493.74
26,082.85

55.69
492.20
5.63
64.54

633.30
27.64
117.29
8.54
11.15

Current maturity of long-term debts (refer note 23)
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Security deposit
Unclaimed dividend *
Derivative liabilities
Other liabilities
* Not due for deposit to Investor education and protection fund.

* Includes payable to related parties (refer note 52)

Daawat Kameda India Private Limited
Super Texfab Private Limited
R S Rice & General Mills
Raghuvesh Infrastructure Private Limited
Raghuvesh Agri Foods Private Limited
UIPL Innovations Private Limited

a) Due to micro, small and medium enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 to the extent information available with the
management is given below:

i)

ii)
iii)

232

"the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to
any supplier
at the end of each accounting year"
Principal amount remaining unpaid
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at year end
Amount of interest paid by the group to the suppliers in terms of
section 16 of the Act
Amount paid to the suppliers beyond the respective due date.

As at
March 31, 2020

859.10
1.77
-

585.36
3.75
-

60.99

-

Particulars
Lease liabilities (refer note 4)

32 Other current liabilities
Particulars
Advances from customers
Statutory liabilities
Deferred government grant
Other liabilities*
*Includes payable to related parties (refer note 52)

Vijay Kumar Arora
Ashwani Kumar Arora
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Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021

31 Lease liabilities
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33 Short term provisions

36 Other income (Contd..)

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity
Provision for compensated absences
Others

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

136.32
59.41
191.18
386.91

236.52
99.43
335.95

For disclosures related to provision for employee benefits, refer note 48- Employee benefit obligations

34 Current tax liabilities
Particulars
Provision for income- tax (net of advance tax)

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

2,059.97
2,059.97

2,422.89
2,422.89

35 Revenue from operations
Particulars
Sale of products
Rice
Others
Other operating revenue
Service charges
Processing charges
Rental income (refer note A)

A

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

4,19,535.08
43,144.93

3,81,065.52
30,777.63

606.68
1,045.11
102.74
4,64,434.54

656.83
906.65
102.74
4,13,509.37

The Company has entered into rent agreements as a lessor for Silos, which are in the nature of operating lease. Rental income
for operating lease for the years ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 was H 102.74 and H 102.74 respectively. The
Company has not executed any non-cancellable operating leases.

36 Other income
Particulars
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Year ended
March 31, 2020

24.00
36.61
96.60
37.44
26.08
18.83
661.53
367.50
203.38
194.90
78.19

23.37
117.17
128.52
1,924.85
482.24
183.26
43.60
217.83
108.71

Particulars
Gain on Commodity Future Contracts
Miscellaneous receipts

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

1,732.27
704.67
4,182.00

558.64
3,788.19

The Company has entered into rent agreements as a lessor for area of premises owned by the Company, which are in the nature
of operating lease. Rental income for operating lease for the years ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 was H 194.90 and
H 217.83 respectively. The Company has not executed any non-cancellable operating leases.

37 Cost of material consumed
Particulars
Opening stock
Raw Material
Bardana
Packing material
Other
Add: purchases
Raw Material
Bardana
Packing material
Other
Rice
Less: closing stock
Raw Material
Bardana
Packing material
Other

Consumption details
Raw Material
Bardana
Packing material
Other
Rice

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

51,304.49
3,408.98
2,845.94
202.99
57,762.40

63,709.86
3,998.14
3,408.50
71,116.51

1,39,325.03
326.59
12,506.13
17,602.33
1,76,981.62
3,46,741.70

1,37,469.64
231.83
8,994.47
3,499.48
1,18,322.45
2,68,517.87

36,327.40
2,879.36
3,018.52
148.51
42,373.79
3,62,130.31

51,304.49
3,408.98
2,845.94
202.99
57,762.40
2,81,871.98

1,54,302.12
856.21
12,333.55
17,656.81
1,76,981.62
3,62,130.31

1,49,875.01
820.99
9,557.03
3,296.49
1,18,322.45
2,81,871.98

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

108.97
5,174.23
5,283.20

5,471.10
5,471.10

38 Purchases of stock-in-trade
Particulars
Rice
Others
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Dividend from investments in associates
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment
Interest on fixed deposits with banks
Interest others
Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translations
Profit on sale of investments
Gain on investments carried at fair value through profit and loss
Government grant income (refer note 54)
Export incentives
Amounts written back
Rental income
Income from fleet lease

Year ended
March 31, 2021

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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39 Changes in inventories of finished goods, semi finished goods, work in progress and
stock in trade

42 Depreciation and amortisation expense

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
Opening Stock
Semi-finished goods
Finished goods
Work-in-progress
Traded goods
Closing stock
Semi-finished goods
Finished goods
Work-in-progress
Traded goods
Translation reserve

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

62,892.41
46,723.75
164.96
6,510.70

55,515.60
56,572.77
201.55
4,634.30

85,545.66
68,820.16
182.63
5,841.81
(44,098.44)
(566.90)
(44,665.34)

62,892.41
46,723.75
164.96
6,510.70
632.40
9,104.61
9,737.01

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

23,510.76
1,312.71

18,123.17
809.96

955.86
25,779.33

925.43
19,858.57

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

5,603.71
660.10
8.92
6,272.73
2,466.49
8,739.22

10,481.73
627.66
11,109.39
(73.64)
2,191.29
13,227.04

40 Employee benefit expense
Particulars
Salaries, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other fund (refer note 48 for employee benefit
obligations)
Staff welfare expenses

41 Finance costs
Particulars
Interest on working capital loans
Interest on term loans
Interest on delay in payment of statutory liabilities
Less: Interest capitalised
Other borrowing cost

236

Particulars
Depreciation on
Property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use-assets
Amortisation on Intangible assets

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

7,067.79
3,027.06
753.69
10,848.54

6,533.06
1,982.32
621.84
9,137.22

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

4,223.12
3,819.55
1,074.07
447.99
4,445.55
422.98

3,414.01
3,514.96
777.84
200.64
3,914.68
370.34

177.15
770.46
1,074.08
3,763.80
1,046.41
3,917.78
1,322.45
4,094.56
1,228.93
570.85

74.85
744.11
556.56
2,950.81
800.28
3,959.87
997.46
2,871.28
1,282.11
187.00

188.46
236.63
1,682.35
14,312.94
529.37
1,254.93
4.86
204.46
111.42
480.28
19.80
473.76
677.52
3,222.64
3,702.27
768.95
60,270.37

193.13
461.32
1,469.72
10,760.82
4.53
2,429.58
35.19
344.96
528.13
31.45
691.93
3,038.57
2,472.58
259.43
165.09
49,503.24

43 Other expenses
Particulars
Warehouse rent (refer note 4)
Wages and other manufacturing expenses
Equipment expense
Factory insurance
Power and fuel
Security services
Repairs
- Building
- Machinery
- Others
Stores and spares consumed
Packing expenses
Advertisement
Insurance
Legal and professional charges
Rates and taxes
Donation and charity (refer point B for corporate social responsibility
expenditure)
Auditors' remuneration (refer point A)
Vehicle running and maintenance
Commission to selling agents
Clearing and forwarding charges
Freight outward
Travelling and conveyance
Loss on sale of fixed assets (net)
Trade receivables and other amounts written off
Provision for Loss on account of fire
Business promotion expenses
Directors' sitting fees
Net loss on foreign currency transactions and translations
Provision for doubtful debts
Other administrative expenses
Other selling expenses
Loss on commodity future contracts
Miscellaneous expenses
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Note: The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to be capitalised is the weighted average interest
rate applicable to the Group’s general borrowings during the year, in this case 7.54% p.a. (March 31, 2020 - 9.10% p.a.) Also,
refer note 2 and 13

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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43 Other expenses (Contd..)

46 Income tax (Contd..)

A Auditors’ remuneration

The major components of income tax expense and the reconciliation of expense based on the domestic effective tax rate of at
25.168% and the reported tax expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss are as follows:

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
Statutory audit (including fees for limited reviews)
Other matters
Out of pocket expenses
Goods and services tax / Service tax

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

183.88
4.58
188.46

166.19
22.56
3.13
1.25
193.13

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

347.19

290.61

357.50

69.77
30.45

B Corporate social responsibility expenditure*
Particulars
i)

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year in
compliance with section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013
ii) Amount spent (in cash) during the year on:
- Construction/acquisition of an asset
- on purpose other than above

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
Accounting profit for the period before Share of profit in Associate
and Joint venture
Applicable Indian statutory income tax rate of 25.168% (March 31, 2020:
25.168%)
Expenses disallowable under the income tax act
Tax impact of exempted income
Difference in overseas tax rate and other foreign entities adjustments
Donation and charity
Long term capital loss not carried forward
Impact of change in tax rates
Interest on CCCPS
Prior period unabsorbed losses utilised
Others
Total income tax expense

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

40,230.91

28,491.40

10,125.32

7,170.72

92.56
198.91
81.83
50.54
89.64
(30.06)
283.17
10,891.91

82.78
(12.83)
582.04
(154.96)
49.94
77.77
(31.25)
7,764.20

*The above figures pertains to the Company and its subsidiaries Company wherever applicable.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

44 Exceptional items
Particulars
Litigation claim

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

-

421.37
421.37

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

27,404.90

18,450.42

3,198.45

3,198.45

1.00

1.00

8.57

5.77

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

10,339.19
552.72
10,891.91

8,823.44
(1,059.24)
7,764.20

45 Earning per share
Particulars
Net profit attributable to equity shareholders for calculation of basic and diluted
EPS
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year for
calculation of basic and diluted EPS
Nominal value of each equity share (H)
Earnings per equity share
Earning per share (basic and diluted) (H)

For the year ended March 31, 2021
Unutilised business losses
Unabsorbed depreciation
Capital losses
Unused tax Credit

For the year ended March 31, 2020
Unutilised business losses
Unabsorbed depreciation
Capital losses
Unused tax Credit

Within
one year

Greater than one
year and less
than five years

Greater
than five
years

No expiry
date

Total

-

1.19
114.09
-

141.53
-

0.31
-

1.19
0.31
255.62
-

Within
one year

Greater than one
year and less
than five years

Greater
than five
years

No expiry
date

Total

0.61
4.86

576.99
77.74
26.05

3.24
69.83
33.28

71.85
-

580.84
71.85
147.58
64.19

No deferred tax asset has been recognised on these unutilized tax losses as there is no evidence that sufficient taxable profit will
be available in future against which they can be utilised by the respective entities.

Particulars
The income tax expense consists of the following :
Current tax
Deferred tax expense /(credit)
Total income tax
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47 Contingencies and commitments

47 Contingencies and commitments

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
(A) Contingent liabilities
I Income-tax demands (refer note 1 below)
II Guarantees given by group
III FCI Demand for differential price/freight/ taxes
IV Customer claims against the group
V Duty saved under EPCG licenses (export obligation outstanding H 545.41
(March 31, 2020: H2,228.95)

1

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

2,131.48
145.70
75.69
30.77
90.90

2,126.99
145.70
75.69
30.77
307.60

2,474.54

2,686.75

Notes				
a)

b)

In case of Daawat Foods Limited, the subsidiary Company had filed appeals in previous years against the order of
Assessing Officer (AO) before Commissioner of Income tax (CIT (Appeals)) for the Assessment Year 2009-10. The CIT
(Appeals) has allowed substantial relief to the subsidiary Company and after allowing appeal effect of the order of CIT
(Appeals) by the AO, the demand has been reduced to H 59.57 (March 31, 2020: H 59.57 ). The subsidiary Company
has filed appeals against the order of CIT(Appeals) for the above said assessment year before the Income Tax Appellate
Tribunal (ITAT), on issues for which relief has not been given by CIT(Appeals). Further, the matter of AY 2009-10 is still
pending with ITAT
In case of LT Foods Limited (Parent Company) has pending appeals at Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (ITAT) for the AY
2008-09 to AY 2010-11 and AY 2012-13 to AY 2014-15 and for AY 2016-17 on the matters over which no relief was
provided by CIT (Appeals) amounting to H 1,318.31 (March 31, 2020: H 1,318.31).

		

The Parent Company’s appeal at Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (ITAT) for the AY 2003-04 and AY 2007-08 have been
concluded for amounting to H 62.38 (March 31, 2020: H 62.38). However, appeal effect of the same is yet to be processed
by the Ld. Assessing Officer.				

		

The parent Company’s appeal for AY 1999-00 and AY 2010-11 against the demand under section 271(1)(c) amounting
to H 213.69 (March 31, 2020: H 213.69) are pending at various level of appeals.

		

During the financial year 2019-20, the parent Company has received demands during the FY 2019-20, under section
147 for the Assessment Year 2015-16 for H 466.81 (March 31, 2020: H 466.81). The parent Company has already filed an
appeal before the CIT (Appeals). The matter is still pending with CIT (Appeals).

		

The parent Company has paid H 1,651.26 (March 31, 2020: H 1,651.26) as per the directions of the Income Tax
Department against the outstanding demands of various assessment years and the same will be adjusted/ refunded,
once the appeals are final.

c)

		

During the assessment year 2013-14, the department has issued notice of Penalty u/s 271 (1) (c) of the Income Tax Act,
1961 demanding H 1.00. The subsidiary Company had contested the above before CIT(Appeals).

		

During the assessment year 2014-15, the department has issued notice of Penalty u/s 271 (1) (c) of the Income Tax Act,
1961 demanding H 0.08. The subsidiary Company had contested the above before CIT(Appeals).
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(A) Contingent liabilities (Contd..)
		

d)

During the assessment year 2018-19, the department has issued assessment order u/s 143 (3) of the Income Tax Act,
1961 added back amount of H 1,320,720 and has demanded amount of H 4.49. The subsidiary Company has decided
to file rectification under section 154 of Income tax act, 1961.

The management is confident that its position is likely to be upheld in the appeals pending before the various appellate
authorities and no liability could arise on the Group on account of these proceedings. Accordingly no adjustment has been
made in these financial statements (other than provision considered as mentioned above).		

(B) Commitments				
Capital commitments remaining to be executed and not provided for, net of capital advances H 1,498.06 (March 31, 2020: H
1,015.10).

48 Employee benefit obligations

Particulars
Gratuity
Compensated absences
Total

March 31, 2021
Current
Non-current
136.32
59.41
195.73

743.78
264.01
1,007.79

March 31, 2020
Current
Non-current
236.52
99.43
335.95

436.61
159.13
595.74

A Gratuity										
The Group provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in
continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination/
other decrements (if any) on account of any accident or disease is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed
proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. For the funded plan the Group makes
contributions to recognised funds in India. The Group does not fully fund the liability and maintains a target level of funding to
be maintained over a period of time based on estimations of expected gratuity payments.
Disclosure of gratuity
(i)

Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss is as under:
Description
Current service cost
Interest cost
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

151.42
38.16
189.58

135.81
41.41
177.22
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In case of Nature Bio Foods Limited (the subsidiary Company), during the assessment year 2010-11 the Income tax
department (Department) has added back H 24.43 on account of various reasons to the total income of the subsidiary
Company. The department has issued notice of demand u/s 156 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 on March 28, 2013
demanding H 5.15. The subsidiary Company had contested the above before CIT(Appeals) and the Ld. CIT(Appeals) has
dismissed the appeal vide order dated May 19, 2016. The subsidiary Company had contested the above order before
Hon’ble ITAT. No provision is necessary in this regard since the subsidiary Company has been advised that it has a good
case and chances of case decided against the subsidiary Company is not probable. Aforesaid demand is including
interest upto March 28, 2013 but excluding interest from April 1, 2013 onwards and penalty.

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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48 Employee benefit obligations (Contd..)

48 Employee benefit obligations (Contd..)

A Gratuity (Contd..)

A Gratuity (Contd..)

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

(ii) Breakup of actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI)
Description
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in demographic
assumption
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in financial assumption
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from experience adjustment
Remeasurement on plan assets
Return on plan assets (excluding interest)
Total actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in OCI

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

(vi) Movement in net liability recognised in balance sheet				

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

(127.02)

34.83

52.56

108.77

25.62

3.73

(0.53)
(49.37)

(1.31)
146.02

Description
Defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Liability recognised in the balance sheet

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the start of
the year
Current service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial loss/(gain) recognised during the year
Other adjustments
Benefits paid
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of
the year

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

1,206.69

889.28

151.42
69.58
(48.84)
93.01
(69.72)
1,402.14

135.81
69.17
155.24
(42.82)
1,206.69

(iv) Change in fair value of assets:			
Description
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year
Interest income plan assets
Actual contributions
Actuarial Gains/(Losses)
Benefits paid
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

533.56
31.42
26.25
0.53
(69.72)
522.04

366.40
29.19
179.47
1.32
(42.82)
533.56

(v) Actuarial assumptions
Description
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1,402.14
(522.04)
880.10

1,206.69
(533.56)
673.13

Description

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year
- Impact due to increase of 1 %
- Impact due to decrease of 1 %
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year
- Impact due to increase of 1 %
- Impact due to decrease of 1 %

1,402.14
(83.05)
90.95

1,206.69
(46.39)
52.53

1,402.14
81.53
(74.69)

1,206.69
48.54
(45.43)

		

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant.
In practice, this is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the
defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been
applied which was applied while calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.

		

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to prior
period.

(viii) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation (undiscounted)
Description
Within next 12 months
Between 2-5 years
Between 6-10 years

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

141.02
644.69
633.68

242.65
445.54
434.21

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

522.04

533.56

(ix) Composition of plan assets		
March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

up to 7.09%
58 years
up to 17.05%
up to 10.00%

up to 7.51%
58 years
up to 23.00%
up to 9.00%

Description
The scheme is funded through an 'Approved Trust'. The Trust has
taken a Policy from the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) and
Canara HSBC Oreintal Bank of Commerce Life Insurance Company
Limited . The management of the fund is undertaken by the LIC.

Financial Statements

Discount rate
Retirement age
Employee turnover:
Rate of increase in compensation

March 31, 2020

(vii) Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability			

(iii) Movement in the defined benefit obligation during the year is as under:
Description

March 31, 2021

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion
and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.
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48 Employee benefit obligations (Contd..)

49 Fair value disclosures (Contd..)

B Compensated absences										

i)

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

The earned leave liability arises on retirement, withdrawal, resignation and death-in-service of an employee. The actuary has
used projected unit cost (PUC) actuarial method to assess the plan’s liabilities of employees.
(i)

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

up to 7.07%
up to 10.00%
up to 17.05%
2.00%
58 years

up to 6.78%
up to 9.00%
up to 23.00%
2.00%
58 years

Discount rate
Future basic salary increase
Employee turnover/ Withdrawal rate
Leave availment ratio
Retirement age

		
Notes:										

		
		

1
2
3

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet
date for the estimated term of obligations.
The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors on long term basis.
The Group has defined benefit obligation pertaining to Indian entities only.

C Provident fund, ESI fund and other fund

Contribution made by the Group towards ESI fund during the year is H 39.30 (March 31, 2020: H 39.67) relating to Indian
entities.
Contribution made by the Group towards Dutch pension scheme during the year is H 274.33 (March 31, 2020: H 178.97)
relating to its subsidiary Company in Europe.
Contribution made by the Group towards 401 (k) Plan during the year is H 150.51 (March 31, 2020: H 110.58) relating to its
subsidiary Company in US.

49 Fair value disclosures
Financial instruments by category
Particulars

Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Liability component of
compound financial instrument
- net of transaction costs
Trade payable
Lease liability
Derivative liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Total

March 31, 2021
Amortised
FVTPL
FVOCI
cost

March 31, 2020
Amortised
FVTPL
FVOCI
cost

-

-

1,26,254.27
2,709.43

-

-

50,355.50
28,019.55
3,020.14
- 2,10,358.89

1,973.23
1,973.23

-

1,46,278.65
2,339.06

26,082.85
27,807.75
4,906.00
- 2,07,414.31

*Investment in equity instrument of Joint venture and associates have been accounted using equity method of accounting and hence, not presented here.

ii) Fair values hierarchy									
Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the balance sheet are categorised into three levels of fair value
hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:
								

March 31, 2021
Amortised
FVTPL
FVOCI
cost

March 31, 2020
Amortised
FVTPL
FVOCI
cost

455.30
1,235.27
1,690.57

487.55
573.44
0.99
1,061.98

-

1,512.27
48,672.53
1,684.71
1,312.33
15,961.42
69,143.26

-

1,076.09
61,963.31
1,913.61
578.20
15,528.90
81,060.11

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques
which maximise the use of observable market data rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates.			
						
Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements

March 31, 2021
Financial assets
Investments at FVTPL
Keyman insurance policies
Equity instruments - Quoted
Equity instruments - Unquoted
Derivative asset
Total financial assets
Financial liabilities
Derivative liabilities
Total financial liabilities

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

0.21
0.21

455.04
0.05
1,235.27
1,690.36

-

455.04
0.21
0.05
1,235.27
1,690.57

-

-

-

-
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Financial assets
Investments*
Security deposits
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Margin money recoverable
Other bank balances
Derivative asset
Other financial assets
Total

244

Particulars

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for financial instruments.

Contribution made by the Group towards Provident fund during the year is H 320.23 (March 31, 2020: H 311.01) relating to
Indian entities.

i)

Financial instruments by category (Contd..)

Actuarial assumptions
Description

		

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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49 Fair value disclosures (Contd..)

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

ii) Fair values hierarchy (Contd..)
March 31, 2020
Financial assets
Investments at FVTPL
Keyman insurance policies
Equity instruments - Quoted
Equity instruments - Unquoted
Margin money recoverable
Derivative asset
Total financial assets
Financial liabilities
Derivative liabilities
Total financial liabilities

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

0.21
0.21

352.29
0.05
573.44
0.99
926.77

135.00
135.00

352.29
0.21
135.05
573.44
0.99
1,061.98

-

1,973.23
1,973.23

-

1,973.23
1,973.23

Valuation process and technique used to determine fair value
(i)

The fair value of investments in government securities and quoted equity shares is based on the current bid price of
respective investment as at the balance sheet date.

(ii)

The fair value of investments in mutual fund units is based on the net asset value (NAV) as stated by the issuers of these
mutual fund units in the published statements as at the Balance Sheet date. NAV represents the price at which the issuer
will issue further units of mutual fund and the price at which issuers will redeem such units from the investors.

(iii) In order to arrive at the fair value of unquoted investments, the group obtains independent valuations. The techniques used
by the valuer are as follows:
		

a)

Asset approach - Net assets value method

		

b)

Income approach - Discounted cash flows (“DCF”) method

		

c)

Market approach - Enterprise value/Sales multiple method

(iv) Key man insurance policy fair value is based on surrender value stated by Life Insurance Corporation of India, Max New
York Life Insurance Company Limited, SBI Life Insurance Company Limited, Star Union Dai-Ichi Life Insurance and
Canara HSBC OBC Life Insurance which represents surrender value for the investors.

Particulars
Financial assets
Security deposit
Loan to others
Loan to employees
Other financial assets
Total financial assets
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Liability component of compound
financial instrument - net of
transaction costs
Trade payables
Lease Liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Total financial liabilities

Level

March 31, 2021
Carrying value
Fair value

March 31, 2020
Carrying value
Fair value

Level 3
Level 3
Level 3
Level 3

1,512.27
423.97
180.74
67,026.28
69,143.26

1,512.27
423.97
180.74
67,026.28
69,143.26

1,076.09
573.58
245.96
79,164.48
81,060.11

1,076.09
573.58
245.96
79,164.48
81,060.11

Level 3
Level 3

1,26,254.27
2,709.43

1,26,254.27
2,709.43

1,46,278.65
2,339.06

1,46,278.65
2,339.06

Level 3
Level 3
Level 3

50,355.50
28,019.55
3,020.14
2,10,358.89

50,355.50
28,019.55
3,020.14
2,10,358.89

26,082.85
27,807.75
4,906.01
2,07,414.32

26,082.85
27,807.75
4,906.01
2,07,414.32

The management assessed that security deposits, other financial assets and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is
included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other
than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
(i) Long-term fixed-rate and variable-rate receivables are evaluated by the group based on parameters such as interest rates,
individual creditworthiness of the customer and other market risk factors. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken
into account for the expected credit losses of these receivables.
(ii) All the other long term borrowing facilities availed by the Group are variable rate facilities which are subject to changes in
underlying Interest rate indices. Further, the credit spread on these facilities are subject to change with changes in Group’s
creditworthiness. The management believes that the current rate of interest on these loans are in close approximation
from market rates applicable to the Group. Therefore, the management estimates that the fair value of these borrowings
are approximate to their respective carrying values.

Derivative financial assets:
The Company enters into derivative financial instruments with various counterparties, principally financial institutions with
investment grade credit ratings. Foreign exchange forward contracts are valued using valuation techniques, which employs
the use of market observable inputs. The most frequently applied valuation techniques include forward pricing models,
using present value calculations. The models incorporate various inputs including the credit quality of counterparties, foreign
exchange spot and forward rates etc.
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(iii) Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost
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50 Financial risk management

50 Financial risk management (Contd..)

i)

i)

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Risk management framework									
The group’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. This note explains the sources of risk which the
entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact in the financial statements.
Risk

Exposure arising from

Measurement Management

Credit risk

Cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables and contract assets,
favourable derivative financial
instruments, financial assets
measured at amortised cost and fair
value through profit or loss.
Borrowings and other liabilities

Aging analysis

Liquidity risk

Market risk Recognised financial assets and
foreign exchange liabilities not denominated in
functional currency of respective entity
Market risk Borrowings at variable rates
interest rate
Market risk Investments in equity securities
security price

Risk management framework (Contd..)
A) Credit risk (Contd..)

		

a)

Bank deposits, diversification of asset base,
credit limits and collateral.

Rolling cash flow Availability of committed credit lines and
forecasts
borrowing facilities
Cash flow
Forward contract/hedging, if required
forecasting
Sensitivity
analysis
Sensitivity
analysis

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Negotiation of terms that reflect the market
factors
Group presently does not make any significant
investments in equity shares.

Credit rating

Particulars

A: Low

Loans
Investments
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash
and cash equivalent
Other financial assets
Trade receivables
Trade receivables

C: High

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

2,116.98
455.30
1,684.71
1,312.33

1,895.63
487.56
1,913.61
578.20

16,591.98
48,672.53
747.16

15,283.78
61,963.31
728.37

			

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits

			

Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly rated banks
and diversifying bank deposits and accounts in different banks.

			Trade receivables
			

The group closely monitors the credit-worthiness of the debtors through internal systems that are configured to define
credit limits of customers, thereby, limiting the credit risk to pre-calculated amounts. The group assesses increase in credit
risk on an ongoing basis for amounts receivable that become past due and default is considered to have occurred when
amounts receivable become past due one year.

			

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

The group’s risk management is carried out by a central treasury department (of the group) under policies approved by the
Board of Directors. The Board of Directors provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.
A) Credit risk									

Credit risk management (Contd..)

		

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet
its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the group’s receivables from customers and investments in debt
securities. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

			

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost includes loans and advances to employees, security deposits and
others. Credit risk related to these other financial assets is managed by monitoring the recoverability of such amounts
continuously, while at the same time internal control system in place ensure the amounts are within defined limits.

		

-

cash and cash equivalents,

		

Expected credit losses for financial assets other than trade receivables

		-

trade receivables,

			

		

-

loans and receivables carried at amortised cost, and

		

-

deposits with banks

		
a) Credit risk management									
			

			
A: Low									

The Group provides for expected credit losses on loans and advances other than trade receivables by assessing
individual financial instruments for expectation of any credit losses. Since, the Group deals with only high-rated banks
and financial institutions, credit risk in respect of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and bank deposits
is evaluated as very low. In respect of other financial assets, credit risk is evaluated based on knowledge of the credit
worthiness of those parties and loss allowance is measured as lifetime expected credit losses. The Group does not
have any expected loss based impairment recognised on such assets considering their low credit risk nature, though
incurred loss provisions are disclosed under each sub-category of such financial assets.

Particulars

			
B: Medium									
			C: High
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Assets under credit risk –

Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than
cash and cash equivalent
Loans
Other financial assets

March 31, 2021
Carrying
Gross
Expected
amount
carrying probability
net of
amount of default impairment
provision

March 31, 2020
Carrying
Gross
Expected
amount
carrying probability
net of
amount of default impairment
provision

1,684.71
1,312.33

0.00%
0.00%

1,684.71
1,312.33

1,913.61
578.20

0.00%
0.00%

1,913.61
578.20

2,116.98
16,591.98

0.00%
0.00%

2,116.98
16,591.98

1,895.64
15,283.78

0.00%
0.00%

1,895.64
15,283.78
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The group assesses and manages credit risk based on internal credit rating system, continuously monitoring
defaults of customers and other counterparties, identified either individually or by the group, and incorporates this
information into its credit risk controls. Internal credit rating is performed for each class of financial instruments with
different characteristics. The group assigns the following credit ratings to each class of financial assets based on the
assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class of financial assets.

b)
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50 Financial risk management (Contd..)

50 Financial risk management (Contd..)

i)

i)

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Risk management framework (Contd..)
A) Credit risk (Contd..)

		

b)

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Risk management framework (Contd..)
B) Liquidity risk (Contd..)

Expected credit losses for financial assets other than trade receivables (Contd..)

March 31, 2021

			

Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach

			

The Group recognises lifetime expected credit losses on trade receivables using a simplified approach, wherein Group
has defined percentage of provision by analysing historical trend of default relevant to each business segment based
on the criteria defined above and such provision percentage determined have been considered to recognise life time
expected credit losses on trade receivables (other than those where default criteria are met). Trade receivables are
subject to credit limits, controls and approvals processes. Based on the historical experience, the risk of default in
case of trade receivables is low.

Particulars
As at March 31, 2021
Trade receivables
Default rate
Expected credit loss
As at March 31, 2020
Trade receivables
Default rate
Expected credit loss

0-1 Year

Borrowings
Liability component of compound financial
instrument - net of transaction costs
Security deposit received
Lease liabilities*
Trade payable
Other financial liabilities
Total

More than 1
Year
March 31, 2020

48,721.65
0.35%
168.10

698.04
82.95%
579.06

61,963.31
-

728.37
100.00%
728.37

Reconciliation of loss allowance

Borrowings
Liability component of compound financial
instrument - net of transaction costs
Security deposit received
Lease liabilities*
Trade payable
Other financial liabilities
Total

44.36
(7.92)
691.93
728.37
(658.73)
677.52
747.16

B) Liquidity risk									
		

		

1-3 Year

More than
3 years

Total

1,03,303.30
-

10,304.24

12,646.73
2,709.43

1,26,254.27
2,709.43

11.57
3,740.94
50,355.50
3,002.07
1,60,413.38

6.50
8,169.86
18,480.60

16,108.75
31,464.91

18.07
28,019.55
50,355.50
3,002.07
2,10,358.89

Less than
1 year

1-3 Year

More than
3 years

Total

1,23,266.41
-

7,473.21

15,539.02
2,339.06

1,46,278.65
2,339.06

11.50
2,887.62
25,870.48
4,720.50
1,56,756.51

7.00
5,387.00
212.37
167.01
13,246.59

19,533.13
37,411.22

18.50
27,807.75
26,082.85
4,887.51
2,07,414.32

Trade receivables
		

Loss allowance on April 01, 2019
Add (Less): Bad debts written off
Add (Less): Changes in loss allowances
Loss allowance on March 31, 2020
Add (Less): Bad debts written off
Add (Less): Changes in loss allowances
Loss allowance on March 31, 2021

Less than
1 year

“Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due. Due to the nature of the
business, the group maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed facilities.

* Impact of discounting is not material

C) Market risk									
		

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices – such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices –
will affect the group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management
is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

		
a) Foreign currency risk									
			

The group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, primarily with respect to the
US Dollar and Euro. Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency
that is not the functional currency of any of the group entities.

			

(i)

Exposure to currency risk:

Financial Statements

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the group’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of
expected cash flows. The group takes into account the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates.

		
Maturities of financial liabilities									
		

The tables below analyse the group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity of group based on their contractual maturities
for all non-derivative financial liabilities.

		

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal
their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.
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50 Financial risk management (Contd..)

50 Financial risk management (Contd..)

i)

Risk management framework (Contd..)

(a) Disclosure of effects of hedge accounting on financial position

C) Market risk (Contd..)

As at March 31, 2021

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

		

a)

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Foreign currency risk (Contd..)

				

Carrying amount of
hedging instrument

Nominal value

The groups exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in
H are as follows

Type of hedge and
risks
Assets Liabilities

Particulars
Financial assets
Trade receivables*
EURO
USD
GBP
Foreign exchange
derivative contracts
(Sell foreign currency)
EURO
EURO - USD
USD
GBP
GBP - USD
Financial liabilities
Trade payables
EURO
USD
SGD
Foreign exchange
forward contracts (Buy
foreign currency)
USD
Preshipment credit
USD
Demand Loan
USD
Bill discounted
EURO
USD
GBP
				

56.77
272.80
2.37

2,550.59
13,320.68
615.30

4,716.70
20,639.82
221.46

183.44
25.00
395.68
10.08
2.00

305.44
510.99
7.00
-

15,794.17
2,152.48
29,084.70
1,017.59
201.90

25,377.57
38,661.70
654.84
-

4.12
10.48
0.13

5.04
2.72
0.51

354.47
770.52
7.20

418.81
205.84
25.71

121.38

-

8,921.97

-

563.09

457.62

41,389.89

34,623.42

130.98
-

(ii)

-

1,124.06
-

-

36,266.81

6.53

86.10
73.50
100.95
54.33

83.09
75.66
93.55
50.55

8 April
2021 31 March
2022

107.33

12 April
2021 18
September
2021

1:1 USD: H 75.91
EURO: H
92.05 GBP: H
102.41
1:1 USD: H 73.52

1,234.27

(1,234.27)

(100.80)

100.80

Maturity Hedge
dates
ratio

Change in
Average
fair value
strike price of hedging
instrument

Change in the
value of hedged
item used as
the basis for
recognising
hedge
effectiveness

Assets

Liabilities

Assets

Liabilities

64,694.12

-

1.90

1,975.13

30 April
2020 23 March
2021

1:1

USD: H 74.05
EURO: H
83.40 GBP: H
95.16

(1,973.22)

671.22

-

34,623.42

-

23,473.62

21 April
2020 26 February
2021

1:1

USD: H 71.89

684.51

(704.34)

Cash flow
hedge
Foreign currency risk
(i) Foreign exchange
forward contracts

(ii)

Pre-shipment
credit in foreign
currency (PCFCs)

(b) Disclosure of effects of Fair value hedge on financial position
As at March 31, 2021
Nominal value
Assets Liabilities

Year end spot rate
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2020

5.59

Carrying amount of
hedging instrument

Type of hedge and
risks

Type of hedge and risks

The following significant exchange rates have been applied:

EURO
USD
GBP
SGD

Pre-shipment credit
in foreign currency
(PCFCs)

- 1,239.87

Nominal value

9,627.62
14.86
-

48,250.84

As at March 31, 2020

* Trade receivables includes intra group receivables amounting to H 8,923.83 (USD: 79.38, EURO: 27.69, GBP: 5.86) as on March 31, 2021, and
H 17,399.27 (USD: 179.43, EURO: 44.64, GBP: 1.23) as on March 31, 2020 which are eliminated in Consolidated financial statements.

Particulars
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29.62
181.22
6.10

Cash flow hedge
Foreign currency risk
(i) Foreign exchange
forward contracts

(i)

Foreign exchange forward
contracts

-

9,055.13

Carrying amount of
hedging instrument
Assets

Liabilities

-

79.52

Maturity dates

5 April 2021 09 September
2021

Change in fair
Hedge
Average
value of hedging
ratio strike price
instrument
1:1 USD: H74.97

(79.52)

As at March 31, 2020: Nil
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In foreign currency
In G
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Assets Liabilities

Change in
Maturity Hedge
Average fair value
dates ratio strike price of hedging
instrument

Change in the
value of hedged
item used as
the basis for
recognising
hedge
effectiveness
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50 Financial risk management (Contd..)

50 Financial risk management (Contd..)

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

(c) Disclosure of effects of hedge accounting on financial performance
Particulars

For the year ended March 31, 2021

Type of hedge and risks

Change in the
value of hedging
instrument
in other
comprehensive
income

Hedge
ineffectiveness
recognised in
profit or loss

Amount
reclassified
from cash
flow hedging
reserve to
profit or loss

3,015.67

-

(59.38)

1,636.85

-

785.86

Change in the
value of hedging
instrument
in other
comprehensive
income

Hedge
ineffectiveness
recognised in
profit or loss

Amount
reclassified
from cash
flow hedging
reserve to
profit or loss

(30.66)

(8.39)

(899.19)

1,799.48

(5.75)

(481.13)

Cash flow hedge
Foreign currency risk
(i) Foreign exchange forward
contracts
(ii) Pre-shipment credit in foreign
currency (PCFCs)

Line item affected
in statement
of profit and
loss because of
reclassification
and hedge
ineffectiveness

Revenue and other
income
Revenue and other
income

For the year ended March 31, 2020

Type of hedge and risks

Cash flow hedge
Foreign currency risk
(i) Foreign exchange forward
contracts
(ii) Pre-shipment credit in foreign
currency (PCFCs)

Line item affected
in statement
of profit and
loss because of
reclassification
and hedge
ineffectiveness

Revenue and other
income
Revenue and other
income

The Group hedging policy only allows for effective hedge relationships to be established. Hedge effectiveness is determined
at the inception of the hedge relationship, and through periodic prospective effectiveness assessment to ensure that an
economic relationship exists between the hedged item and hedging instrument.
For forward contracts, hedge effectiveness is measured using hypothetical derivative method. Ineffectiveness is measured by
comparing the change in the fair value of the actual derivative i.e. forward contracts designated as the hedging instrument
and the change in the fair value of a hypothetical derivative representing the hedged item i.e. highly probable forecast sales.
Hypothetical derivative matches the critical terms i.e. maturity date, currency and amount of highly probable forecast sales.
For PCFCs, hedge effectiveness is measured by comparing change in the discounted spot restatement of hypothetical
derivative with change in the value of actual hedging instrument i.e. PCFC.

Amount
1,445.18
(4,358.41)
(2,276.30)
243.69
871.54
1,683.34
(63.49)
(3,899.63)
(2,454.45)
(2,454.45)
2,956.32
2,422.71
(195.83)
(726.48)
(1,170.94)
3,285.78
831.33

As at April 01, 2019
Add: Changes in fair value of forward contracts
Add: Changes in fair value of PCFCs
Less: Gain/(Loss) on cash flow hedge reserve attributable to non controlling interest
Less: Amount reclassified to profit or loss
Less: Tax relating to above (net)
Less: ineffectiveness charged to profit and loss
Change during the year ended March 31, 2020
As at March 31, 2020
As at April 01, 2020
Add: Changes in fair value of forward contracts
Add: Changes in fair value of PCFCs
Less: Gain/(Loss) on cash flow hedge reserve attributable to non controlling interest
Less: Amount reclassified to profit or loss
Less: Tax relating to above (net)
Change during the year ended March 31, 2021
As at March 31, 2021
Sensitivity									

‘A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Euro, US dollar, GBP against all other currencies at March 31, 2021 would
have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit or loss
by the amounts shown below. Further, the sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign
currency denominated financial instruments and the impact on other components of equity arises from foreign forward exchange
contracts and pre-shipment credit in foreign currency (PCFC) designated as cash flow hedges. This analysis assumes that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

Particulars

Sensitivity of change in
exchange rate by 1%*
Sensitivity of change in
exchange rate by 1%*
Sensitivity of change in
exchange rate by 1%*
Sensitivity of change in
exchange rate by 1%*

Currency

Strengthen

Strengthen

Effect on profit after
tax Gain/(Loss)

Effect on other
components of
equity Gain/(Loss)

Weaken

Weaken

Effect on profit after
tax Gain/(Loss)

Effect on other
components of
equity Gain/(Loss)

March
31, 2021

March
31, 2020

March
31, 2021

March
31, 2020

March
31, 2021

March
31, 2020

March
31, 2021

March
31, 2020

EURO

16.43

32.16

118.19

189.91

(16.43)

(32.16)

(118.19)

(189.91)

USD

93.92

152.91

217.65

289.31

(93.92)

(152.91)

(217.65)

(289.31)

GBP

4.60

1.66

7.61

4.90

(4.60)

(1.66)

(7.61)

(4.90)

SGD

(0.05)

(0.19)

-

22.47

0.05

0.19

-

(22.47)

(d) Movements in cash flow hedging reserve
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In hedges of foreign currency forecast sales, ineffectiveness mainly arises because of Change in timing of hedged item from
that of the hedging instrument and cost of hedging. The ineffectiveness arised in the hedges have been disclosed in above
table.
* Holding all other variables constant
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50 Financial risk management (Contd..)

		
b) Interest rate risk									

		

			
i) Liabilities									

			

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

				

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

c)

The group’s policy is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term financing. At March 31,
2021, the group is exposed to changes in market interest rates through bank borrowings at variable interest
rates. The group’s investments in fixed deposits all pay fixed interest rates.

Key man Insurance
Net assets value – increase by 100 basis points (March 31, 2020:
100 basis points)
Net assets value – decrease by 100 basis points (March 31, 2020:
100 basis points)
Quoted equity instruments
Market price – increase by 100 basis points (March 31, 2020: 100
basis points)
Market price – decrease by 100 basis points (March 31, 2020:
100 basis points)

Below is the overall exposure of the group to interest rate risk:
Particulars
Variable rate borrowing*
Fixed rate borrowing
Total borrowings

				

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

1,23,305.36
2,948.91
1,26,254.27

1,21,914.25
24,364.40
1,46,278.65

* Variable rate borrowing includes borrowing where interest rate is linked with Libor/Euribor/Eibor H 49,544.12 (March 31, 2020: H 23,026.84)

Impact on profit after tax
Particulars

				Interest rate risk exposure
				

Price risk Exposure (Contd..)

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

455.04
3.41

352.29
2.64

(3.41)

(2.64)

0.21
0.00

0.21
0.00

(0.00)

(0.00)

				
Sensitivity									

51 Capital management									

				

The group’s capital management objectives are

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.
In case of fixed rate borrowings a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

Particulars
Total borrowings
- Impact due to increase of 50 basis points*
- Impact due to decrease of 50 basis points*

Effect on profit after tax
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2020

-

to ensure the group’s ability to continue as a going concern

-

to provide an adequate return to shareholders

The group monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity less cash and cash equivalents as presented on the face
of balance sheet.									

			
ii) Assets									

Management assesses the group’s capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure while avoiding
excessive leverage. This takes into account the subordination levels of the group’s various classes of debt. The group manages
the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of
the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

				

The group’s adjusted net debt to equity ratio is as follows:

				

(456.39)
456.39

(456.79)
456.79

*Holding all other variables constant

The group’s fixed deposits are carried at amortised cost and are fixed rate deposits. They are therefore not
subject to interest rate risk, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of
a change in market interest rates.

		
c) Price risk Exposure									
			

The group’s exposure price risk arises from investments held and classified in the balance sheet as fair value through
profit or loss. The exposure is preliminary arising from keyman insurance policy, which are held with reputed institutions
and therefore, risk is appropriately addressed.

Particulars
Total borrowings
Less : cash and cash equivalents
Net debt
Total equity
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio

March 31, 2021
1,26,254.27
1,684.71
1,24,569.56
1,75,548.66
0.71

March 31, 2020
1,46,278.65
1,913.61
1,44,365.04
1,48,133.37
0.97

			
Sensitivity 									
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The table below summarises the impact of increases/decreases of the index on the group’s equity and profit for the
period :
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51 Capital management (Contd..)

a) Dividends

b) Loan covenants (Contd..)

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

March 31, 2021

Equity shares
(i) Final Dividend
For the year ended March 31, 2019 of H 0.15 per share
(excluding tax)
(ii) Interim Dividend
For the year ended March 31, 2021 of H 0.50 per share
(excluding tax)
For the year ended March 31, 2021 of H 0.50 per share
(excluding tax)
For the year ended March 31, 2020 of H 0.50 per share
(excluding tax)

March 31, 2020

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

iv)
		

-

479.77

1,599.19

v)

Under the terms of the Coöperatieve Rabobank U.A., borrowing facilities, Nature Bio Foods BV, Nature bio Foods Inc.,
the Subsidiary Companies was required to comply with the following financial covenants:
-

Obligor to maintain the Tangible solvency Ratio not less than 20% at the last day of quarter.

Under the terms of the Rabobank borrowing facilities, LT Foods America Inc., LT Food Europe BV, the Subsidiary
Companies was required to comply with the following financial covenants:

		

-

Obligor to maintain the Tangible solvency Ratio not less than 20% at the last day of quarter.
Obligor shall not permit the aggregate amount of capital expenditures to exceed $3,000,000 for any Fiscal Year.

1,599.19

-

		

-

-

1,599.22

		

The Group has complied with these covenants throughout the reporting period.

This proposed dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting.

b) Loan covenants									
i)

Under the terms of major borrowing facilities, LT Foods Limited, the Company is required to comply with the following
covenants:

		

-

the current ratio must be more than 1.33 times;

		

-

the debt to equity must remain lower than 1 times;

		

-

the promoter’s holding must not be less than 51%;

		

-

the total outside liability to tangible net worth ratio must not exceed 1 times;

		

-

the total outside liability to adjusted tangible net worth must not exceed 1.1 times;

		

-

the Net Debts to EBITDA must not exceed 5 times;

		

-

the Net Working Capital to be maintained at minimum level of 30% of current assets;

		

-

the investment in subsidiary Company, associates and JVs must not exceed H 12,484;

ii)
		
iii)

Under the terms of major borrowing facilities, Daawat Foods Limited, the Subsidiary Company is required to comply with
the following covenants:
-

the current ratio must be 1.33 times;

Under the terms of the Indusind bank’s borrowing facilities, Ecopure Specialities Limited, the Subsidiary Company is
required to comply with the following financial covenants:
-

Debt/EBITDA not more than 5 times

		

-

Annual DSCR not less than 1.25 times

		

-

Debt/Adj. Total Net Worth ( TNW) not more than 2.75

		

-

Interest cover not less than 1.5
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The group’s related party transactions and outstanding balances are with its subsidiaries, associates and a joint venture, key
management and others as described below.

A. Names of related parties and description of relationship					
a)

Associates					

		

Raghuvesh Agri Foods Private Limited					

		

Raghuvesh Warehousing Private Limited					

		

Raghuvesh Infrastructure Private Limited

b)
		

Joint Venture					
Daawat Kameda India Private Limited

B. Key Management Personnel and their relatives
-Key Management Personnel
Name

Designation

Mr. Vijay Kumar Arora
Mr. Surinder Kumar Arora
Mr. Ashwani Kumar Arora
Mr. Ashok Kumar Arora
Mr. Gokul Patnaik
Mr. Suparas Bhandari
Ms. Neeru Singh
Ms. Ambika Sharma
Mr. Pramod Bhagat
Ms. Radha Singh
Mr. Rajesh Kumar Srivastava

Managing Director
Managing Director
Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer
President-Punjab Operations
Director
Director
Director (w.e.f March 17, 2020)
Nominee Director (w.e.f March 10, 2021)
Director (upto February 6, 2020)
Director (upto February 6, 2020)
Nominee Director

Financial Statements

		

52 Related party disclosures						
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52 Related party disclosures (Contd..)

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Transactions with key management persons and their relatives and joint ventures (Contd..)

B. Key Management Personnel and their relatives (Contd..)
-Relatives of Key Management Personnel (with whom transactions have taken place during the year or previous year)
Name

Designation

Mr. Abhinav Arora
Mr. Aditya Arora
Mr. Gursajan Arora
Mr. Ritesh Arora
Mr. Anmol Arora
Ms. Divya Arora
Ms. Ranju Arora

Relative of Managing Director
Relative of Key management personnel
Relative of Key management personnel
Relative of Managing Director
Relative of Managing Director
Relative of Key management personnel
Relative of Managing Director

Entities in which Key Management Personnel have significant influence and with whom transactions have taken
place during the year or previous year
R. S Rice & General Mills					
Super Texfab Private Limited					
Raghuvesh Holdings Private Limited					
UIPL Innovations Private Limited (from May 01, 2019)					
Oswal Woollen Mills Limited					
Global Foods Trading Gmbh					
L T F Food Trading LLC					
Sidhu Food B.V.					
Buddha Gourmet Foods Gmbh
Transactions with key management persons and their relatives and joint venture
Particulars
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March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

69.55
148.48
9,209.92
12.75
266.51
53.35

23.47
302.75
6,043.12
16.87
287.81
-

2,724.70
317.60
12.75
312.65

1,914.39
136.57
63.26

16.60
120.62

-

Particulars
Transactions with key management personnel
Directors remuneration ( excluding long term employee
benefit)
Mr. Vijay Kumar Arora
Mr. Ashwani Kumar Arora
Mr. Surinder Kumar Arora
Mr. Ashok Kumar Arora
Total (A)
Defined benefit obligation for KMP (Gratuity )
Mr. Vijay Kumar Arora
Mr. Ashwani Kumar Arora
Mr. Surinder Kumar Arora
Total (B)
Compensated absences
Mr. Vijay Kumar Arora
Mr. Ashwani Kumar Arora
Mr. Surinder Kumar Arora
Mr. Ashok Kumar Arora
Total(C)
Relatives of Key Management Personnel
Remuneration
Abhinav Arora
Aditya Arora
Anmol Arora
Gursajan Arora
Ritesh Arora
Divya Arora
Dividend paid to key management personnel
Dividend paid to relatives of key management personnel and
entities in which key management personnel have significant
influence. (net of statutory taxes)
Details of parties to whom dividend paid is more than 10%
Raghuvesh Holdings Private Limited
Others
Salary advance to Director's relative
Reimbursement of expenses received
Daawat Kameda India Private Limited
Raghuvesh Infrastructure Private Limited
UIPL Innovations Private Limited
Rent expense
Raghuvesh Agri Foods Private Limited
R S Rice & General Mills
Rental income
Daawat Kameda India Private Limited
Interest income
Raghuvesh Agri Foods Private Limited
Raghuvesh Warehousing Private Limited
Loan granted
Raghuvesh Agri Foods Private Limited

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

326.74
211.21
211.21
215.00
964.16

273.22
211.21
211.21
207.80
903.44

14.36
14.36

20.00
15.19
0.08
35.27

10.31
6.75
6.19
6.19
29.44

10.31
4.81
6.36
6.19
27.67

445.83
110.71
49.07
145.61
60.37
61.10
850.52

425.26
99.99
49.03
139.01
48.74
38.01
587.46

308.81
311.29
37.62

204.36
370.75
-

120.62
9.94
16.60

370.72
11.57
6.43

20.00

18.00
20.00

183.40

188.94

29.15
19.92

-

50.00

328.49
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Sales
Daawat Kameda India Private Limited
Oswal Woollen Mills Limited
Global Foods Trading Gmbh
L T F Food Trading LLC
Sidhu Food B.V.
Buddha Gourmet Foods Gmbh
Purchases
Super Texfab Private Limited
UIPL Innovations Private Limited
L T F Food Trading LLC
Daawat Kameda India Private Limited
Service charges received
UIPL Innovations Private Limited
Daawat Kameda India Private Limited

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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53 Segment reporting								

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Transactions with key management persons and their relatives and joint ventures (Contd..)
Particulars
Raghuvesh Warehousing Private Limited
Payment received against Loan
Raghuvesh Agri Foods Private Limited
Raghuvesh Warehousing Private Limited
Net payment received against Loan
Raghuvesh Agri Foods Private Limited
Raghuvesh Warehousing Private Limited
Amount Written off
L T F Food Trading LLC
Dividend received
Raghuvesh Infrastructure Private Limited
Sitting fees
Ranju Arora
Director sitting fees
Mr. Gokul Patnaik
Mr. Suparas Bhandari
Mr. Pramod Bhagat
Ms. Radha Singh
Ms. Neeru Singh

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

55.00

245.09

120.00
180.00

-

70.00
125.00

-

29.43

-

24.00

-

0.20

-

5.80
5.40
2.80

6.55
4.60
8.95
6.95
-

Mr. Vijay Kumar Arora, Mr. Ashwani Kumar Arora, Mr. Surinder Kumar Arora and Mr. Ashok Kumar Arora, the Directors in
the Company and in the few of its subsidiary companies have given personal guarantees against the long and short term
borrowings (except vehicles loans) availed by the Company and few of its subsidiaries.
Particulars

(492.20)
285.45
138.52
(17.49)
(64.54)
13.38
3,074.89
109.35
(5.63)
(8.28)
(8.07)
139.18

March 31, 2020
(633.30)
(117.29)
319.95
245.50
26.81
(11.15)
11.11
2,837.24
75.91
(27.64)
21.83
(0.14)
(0.09)
104.56

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties 					

The business activity of the Group predominantly fall within a single reportable business segment viz. manufacture and storage of
rice. There are no separate reportable business segments. As part of reporting for geographical segments, the Group operates in
three principal geographical areas of the world, i.e., India, America, Europe and other countries (Rest of the world). The aforesaid
is in line with review of operating results by the chief operating decision maker.

Information about products and services

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

4,19,535.08
43,144.93
1,754.53
4,64,434.54

3,81,065.52
30,777.63
1,666.22
4,13,509.37

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

1,36,854.40
1,73,758.73
91,767.10
62,053.91

1,42,499.00
1,53,131.93
58,238.03
59,640.41

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

46,830.41
25,548.41
25,189.07
1,090.10

44,992.42
35,364.08
17,892.89
1,499.26

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

330.56
583.00
661.53
252.03

401.78
411.02
482.24
330.56

Revenue from external customers
Rice
Others
Other operating revenue
Total

Information about geographical areas
Particulars
Revenues from external customers
In India
In America
In Europe
Others
Particulars
Non current assets located
In India
In America
In Europe
Others

54 Deferred government grants
Particulars
At the beginning of the year
Received during the year
Released to the Statement of Profit and Loss
At the end of the year
Particulars
Government grants

March 31, 2021
Current
Non-current
37.59

214.44

March 31, 2020
Current
Non-current
44.19

286.37

The transactions with related parties have been entered into by Group in the ordinary course of business, on arm’s length
basis on terms prevailing in the open market at that time.
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Net balances at the year-end {(payable)/ receivable}
Super Texfab Private Limited
Raghuvesh Infrastructure Private Limited
Raghuvesh Agri Foods Private Limited
Raghuvesh Warehousing Private Limited
Daawat Kameda India Private Limited
UIPL Innovations Private Limited
Oswal Woollen Mills Limited
Global Foods Trading Gmbh
Sidhu Food B.V.
R S Rice & General Mills
L T F Food Trading LLC
Vijay Kumar Arora
Ashwani Kumar Arora
Gursajan Arora

March 31, 2021

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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55 There are numerous interpretation issues relating to the judgement passed by the Hon’ble Supreme Court dated February
28, 2019 in the matter of Surya Roshni Ltd and others v/s State of M.P on Provident fund. The order does not specifically
mention the date of applicability of this Judgement, whether it is will be retrospectively or prospectively. Pending issuance of
guidelines by the regulatory authorities on the application of this ruling, the impact on the Company for the previous periods,
if any, cannot be ascertained. However, the Company has adopted the above changes prospectively.

57 Interests in associates and joint venture

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Set out below are the associates and joint ventures of the Group as at March 31, 2021 which, in the opinion of the Directors, are
material to the Group. The entities listed below have share capital consisting solely of equity shares, which are held directly by the
Group. The country of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of business, and the proportion of ownership interest
is the same as the proportion of voting rights held.

56 Assets pledged as security
Name of the entity
Particulars
Non-current asset*
First charge
Property, plant and equipments
Capital work in progress
Other financial assets
Total non-current asset pledged as security
Current assets*
First charge
Pari-passu
Inventories
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other bank balances
Loans
Other financial assets
Other current assets
Total current asset pledged as security
Total assets pledged as security

As at
March 31, 2021

48,909.70
574.26
564.30
50,048.26

As at
March 31, 2020

39,292.90
600.67
39,893.57

2,18,093.10
54,372.88
1,475.45
1,125.55
513.59
3,581.93
29,721.52
3,08,884.02
3,58,932.28

1,59,463.19
84,209.35
1,113.89
117.52
709.87
1,016.18
13,149.58
2,59,779.58
2,99,673.15

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

11,640.39
192.81
1,132.27

25,998.04
6,136.42

% of
Place of
ownership
business
interest

Relationship

Raghuvesh Warehousing
Private Limited

India

40.00%

Associate

Raghuvesh Agri Foods
Private Limited

India

40.00%

Associate

Raghuvesh Infrastructure
Private Limited

India

30.00%

Associate

Daawat Kameda India
Private Limited

India

51.00%

Joint venture

Trade receivables
Other financial assets
Other current assets

Equity
method
Equity
method
Equity
method
Equity
method

450.81

457.85

372.68

389.36

50.33

-

1,543.08

2,000.88

2,416.90

2,848.09

Summarised financial information for associates and joint ventures
The tables below provide summarised financial information for those joint ventures and associates that are material to the Group.
The information disclosed reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements of the relevant associates and joint ventures
and not LT Foods Limited’s share of those amounts. They have been amended to reflect adjustments made by the entity when
using the equity method, including fair value adjustments made at the time of acquisition and modifications for differences in
accounting policies.

Balance Sheet

Raghuvesh Warehousing
Private Limited
As at
As at
March 31,
March 31,
2021
2020

Associates
Raghuvesh Agri Foods
Private Limited
As at
As at
March 31,
March 31,
2021
2020

Raghuvesh Infrastructure
Private Limited
As at
As at
March 31,
March 31,
2021
2020

0.53

-

0.78

0.46

-

-

58.65

84.62

148.81

216.33

1,320.82

1,320.82

1,058.75
119.93
99.27
1,337.13

1,311.98
112.92
108.22
1,617.74

1,058.75
253.14
86.88
1,548.36

1,311.98
236.66
112.97
1,878.40

143.20
0.02
159.74
1,623.78

0.02
87.54
1,408.38

81.82
5.92

135.87
15.49

75.75
4.59

120.01
9.09

225.59
83.11

40.56
81.50

1.96
253.23
36.08
379.01

3.36
213.39
72.58
440.69

1.95
253.23
7.66
343.18

2.08
213.24
1.18
345.60

6.57
0.27
13.46
329.00

6.57
0.37
13.06
142.06
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Non-current Assets
Property, Plant and
Equipment
Other Intangible Assets
Financial Assets
Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets
Income tax assets
Total Non-current Assets
Current Assets
Financial Assets
Trade receivables
Cash and Cash
equivalents
Loans
Other financial assets
Other assets
Total Current Assets

264

Carrying amount
As at
As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Total equity
accounted
investments

* Above figures includes following intra group balances which has been eliminated in Consolidated accounts:

Particulars

Accounting
method
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57 Interests in associates and joint venture (Contd..)

57 Interests in associates and joint venture (Contd..)

Summarised financial information for associates and joint ventures (Contd..)

Summarised financial information for associates and joint ventures (Contd..)

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Balance Sheet

Non-current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings
Other Liabilities
Total Non-current
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities
Other liabilities
Total Current liabilities
Net Assets

Balance Sheet

266

182.08
182.08

60.00
3.68
320.17
23.16
407.01
1,127.05

394.52
394.52

60.00
0.47
191.58
267.23
519.28
1,144.63

Associates
Raghuvesh Agri Foods
Private Limited
As at
As at
March 31,
March 31,
2021
2020

580.71
580.71

50.00
3.66
278.70
46.83
379.19
931.64

Raghuvesh Infrastructure
Private Limited
As at
As at
March 31,
March 31,
2021
2020

613.69
613.69

50.00
1.53
175.96
409.47
636.96
973.35

-

480.97
1,440.95
1,921.92
30.86

293.00
293.00

371.51
942.84
1,314.35
(56.90)

Joint Venture
Effect on profit after tax
As at
As at
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2020
1,411.50
181.88

1,711.05
-

4.56
2.20
6.14
1,606.28

4.24
30.10
31.35
1,776.74

106.32

54.71

21.04
258.68
1,009.56
485.26
1,880.86

0.31
419.70
1,641.17
454.29
2,570.18

5.79
5.79

2.80
2.80

22.64
105.44

16.53
87.38

Joint Venture
Effect on profit after tax
As at
As at
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2020

Balance Sheet

99.36
0.23
227.67
3,253.68

Other current liabilities
Provisions
Total Current liabilities
Net Assets

88.72
0.15
192.78
4,151.34

Reconciliation to carrying amounts

Summarised Balance
Sheet

Opening net assets
Profit/(loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income
Dividends paid
Closing net assets
Group’s share in %
Group’s share in H
Other adjustments
Group's share of loss for
the year adjusted through
investment
Carrying amount

Summarised Balance Sheet

Opening net assets
Increase in equity share capital
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Dividends paid
Closing net assets
Group’s share in %
Group’s share in H
Other adjustments
Goodwill
Carrying amount

Raghuvesh Warehousing
Private Limited
As at
As at
March 31,
March 31,
2021
2020

Associates
Raghuvesh Agri Foods
Private Limited
As at
As at
March 31,
March 31,
2021
2020

Raghuvesh Infrastructure
Private Limited
As at
As at
March 31,
March 31,
2021
2020

1,144.63
(17.58)
1,127.05
40%
450.81
-

1,234.11
(89.48)
1,144.63
40%
457.85
-

973.35
(41.71)
931.64
40%
372.68
-

1,177.22
(203.87)
973.35
40%
389.36
-

(56.90)
167.76
80.00
30.86
30%
9.26
41.07
-

(139.53)
82.63
(56.90)
30%
(17.07)
17.07

450.81

457.85

372.68

389.36

50.33

-

Joint Venture
Effect on profit after tax
As at
As at
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2020
4,151.34
(897.24)
(0.42)
3,253.68
51%
1,659.38
(116.30)
1,543.08

4,657.24
(505.90)
4,151.34
51%
2,117.18
(116.30)
2,000.88
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Non-current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Financial Assets
Loans
Other Assets
Non current tax assets
Total Non-current Assets
Current Assets
Inventories
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables
Cash and Cash equivalents
Other bank balances
Other assets
Total Current Assets
Non-current Liabilities
Provisions
Total Non-current Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities

Raghuvesh Warehousing
Private Limited
As at
As at
March 31,
March 31,
2021
2020

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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57 Interests in associates and joint venture (Contd..)

57 Interests in associates and joint venture (Contd..)

Summarised financial information for associates and joint ventures (Contd..)

Summarised financial information for associates and joint ventures (Contd..)

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Summarised Statement
of Profit and Loss

Income
Revenue from operations
Other income
Total income
Expenses
Costs of services
rendered
Purchase of stock-intrade
Changes in inventories
of finished goods, semi
finished goods, work in
progress and stock in
trade
Employee benefit
expense
Depreciation and
amortisation expense
Finance costs
Other expenses
Total expenses
Profit before tax
Current tax expense
Deferred tax expense
Profit/(loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive
income/(loss)

Raghuvesh Warehousing
Private Limited
Year ended Year ended
March 31,
March 31,
2021
2020

Associates
Raghuvesh Agri Foods
Private Limited
Year ended Year ended
March 31,
March 31,
2021
2020

Raghuvesh Infrastructure
Private Limited
Year ended Year ended
March 31,
March 31,
2021
2020

195.55
6.28
201.83

246.86
0.80
247.66

213.82
2.39
216.21

244.42
0.60
245.02

700.87
700.87

520.70
520.70

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

11.47

11.44

16.02

14.47

95.41

85.25

26.74

107.23

68.49

268.80

-

-

62.46
125.76
226.43
(24.60)
(7.01)
(17.58)
(17.58)

59.94
124.96
303.57
(55.91)
33.57
(89.48)
(89.48)

91.02
98.87
274.40
(58.19)
(16.48)
(41.71)
(41.71)

77.51
95.90
456.68
(211.66)
(7.79)
(203.87)
(203.87)

58.74
291.90
446.05
254.82
87.06
167.76
167.76

83.67
221.03
389.95
130.75
48.12
82.63
82.63

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Summarised Statement of Profit and Loss

Joint Venture
Daawat Kameda India Private
Limited
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2020

Expenses
Cost of materials consumed
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-intrade
Employee benefit expense
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses
Total expenses
Profit before tax
Current tax expense
Deferred tax expense
Profit/(loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income/(loss)

152.74
(8.99)

77.99
8.99

174.86
299.98
548.60
1,167.19
(897.24)
(897.24)
(0.42)
(897.66)

135.13
8.30
513.43
743.84
(505.90)
(505.90)
(505.90)

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

26.61
(457.81)
(431.20)

(117.34)
(258.00)
(375.34)

Total share of profits on account of equity accounting of the joint venture under Ind AS:
Particulars
Share of profits from associates
Share of profits from joint ventures
Total share of losses from associates and joint ventures

58 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Indian Accounting Standard 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“Ind AS 115”), establishes a framework for determining
whether, how much and when revenue is recognised and requires disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of
revenues and cash flows arising from customer contracts. Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised through a 5-step approach:
(i) Identify the contract(s) with customer;

Note: Loss for Raghuvesh Infrastructure Private Limited for the year ended March 31, 2020 has been recognised Nil. However,
H 82.63 has not been recognised, since the Group share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate. Group share of loss for the
previous year adjusted through investment.

Revenue
Revenue from operations
Other income
Total income

268

189.92
80.03
269.95

50.07
187.87
237.94

(iii) Determine the transaction price;
(iv) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations; and
(v) Recognise revenue when a performance obligation is satisfied.

Financial Statements

Summarised Statement of Profit and Loss

Joint Venture
Daawat Kameda India Private
Limited
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2020

(ii) Identify separate performance obligations in the contract;

Significant changes in contract assets and liabilities
There has been no significant changes in contact assets/contract liabilities during the year.

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities
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58 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Contd..)

59 Additional information required by Schedule III

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Advance from Customers:

Net Assets, i.e., total
assets minus total
liabilities

Description

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

5,810.25
(5,758.95)
5,535.89

1,117.32
(1,117.32)
5,810.25

5,587.19

5,810.25

Amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year
Performance obligations satisfied in current year
Amount received in the current year having outstanding performance
obligations
Amounts included in contract liabilities at the end of the year

Remaining performance obligations as at the reporting date are expected to be recognised over the
next year by the Group.
The Group has applied the practical expedient and has not disclosed the transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations as the Group does not have any open contract for which the expected duration is more than one year as at the
reporting period.
Revenue by time

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

709.42
4,63,725.12
4,64,434.54

759.57
4,12,749.80
4,13,509.37

Revenue recognised over time
Revenue recognised at point in time

Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers
Description
Contract assets related to sale of goods
and services
Trade receivables
Contract assets related to sale of goods
and services
Advance from customers

As at March 31, 2021
Non-current
Current

-

-

As at March 31, 2020
Non-current
Current

48,672.53

-

5,587.19

-

61,963.31

5,810.25

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price
Description
Contract price
Adjustment for:
Incentives and discounts

March 31, 2020

4,76,736.13

4,24,382.16

(12,301.59)
4,64,434.54

(10,872.79)
4,13,509.37

Parent
LT Foods
Limited
March 31 2021
March 31 2020
Subsidiaries
(group's share)
2 Daawat Foods
Limited
March 31 2021
March 31 2020
3 Nature Bio
Foods Limited
March 31 2021
March 31 2020
4 SDC Foods
India Limited
March 31 2021
March 31 2020
5 LT
International
Limited
March 31 2021
March 31 2020
6 Raghuvesh
Food and
Infrastructure
Limited
March 31 2021
March 31 2020
7 Deva Singh
Sham Singh
Exports
Private
Limited
March 31 2021
March 31 2020
8 Raghunath
Agro
Industries
Private
Limited
March 31 2021
March 31 2020
9 LT Agri
Services
Private
Limited
March 31 2021
March 31 2020
10 Expo Services
Private
Limited
March 31 2021
March 31 2020

As % of
Consolidated
net assets

Share in other
Comprehensive income

As % of
As % of
As % of
Consolidated
Consolidated
Consolidated
other J in lakhs
total J in lakhs
J in lakhs
J in lakhs
profit and
Comprehensive
Comprehensive
loss
income
income

1

51.10%
54.49%

96,585.64
87,140.50

36.83%
42.73%

10,648.10
8,516.26

58.73%
640.88%

1,995.51
(3,027.28)

39.14%
28.21%

12,643.61
5,488.98

17.11%
16.66%

32,347.07
26,636.39

17.54%
25.57%

5,071.27
5,097.01

18.82%
170.20%

639.41
(803.94)

17.68%
22.06%

5,710.68
4,293.07

8.47%
8.81%

16,018.06
14,094.30

3.83%
9.70%

1,107.80
1,933.39

24.02%
87.91%

815.98
(415.23)

5.96%
7.80%

1,923.79
1,518.16

0.00%
0.00%

0.00

0.00%
1.11%

221.86

0.00%
0.00%

-

0.00%
1.14%

221.86

0.02%
0.10%

28.99
164.48

-0.47%
-0.04%

(135.50)
(8.75)

0.00%
0.00%

-

-0.42%
-0.04%

(135.50)
(8.75)

0.00%
0.00%

-

0.00%
0.00%

-

0.00%
0.00%

-

0.00%
0.00%

-

0.00%
0.00%

(1.45)
(2.84)

0.00%
0.16%

1.39
31.58

0.00%
0.00%

-

0.00%
0.16%

1.39
31.58

1.43%
1.53%

2,696.14
2,442.41

0.87%
0.79%

251.75
156.46

0.06%
-0.63%

1.99
2.96

0.79%
0.82%

253.73
159.41

0.00%
0.00%

0.00
(1.60)

0.01%
0.00%

1.60
(0.20)

0.00%
0.00%

-

0.00%
0.00%

1.60
(0.20)

0.00%
0.00%

-

0.00%
0.00%

-

0.00%
0.00%

-

0.00%
0.00%

-
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Name of the entity

Share in other
Comprehensive income

Share in profit and loss
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59 Additional information required by Schedule III (Contd..)

59 Additional information required by Schedule III (Contd..)

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Net Assets, i.e., total
assets minus total
liabilities
Name of the entity

272

0.00%
-0.07%

1.17%
-0.24%

Share in other
Comprehensive income

As % of
As % of
As % of
Consolidated
Consolidated
Consolidated
other J in lakhs
total J in lakhs
J in lakhs
J in lakhs
profit and
Comprehensive
Comprehensive
loss
income
income

0.00
(108.22)

2,202.72
(385.82)

0.37%
0.00%

3.54%
-1.96%

108.23
(0.12)

1,022.91
(390.19)

0.00%
0.00%

1.93%
0.00%

Net Assets, i.e., total
assets minus total
liabilities

Share in other
Comprehensive income

-

65.63
-

0.34%
0.00%

3.37%
-2.01%

108.23
(0.12)

1,088.54
(390.19)

0.73%
0.89%

1,387.85
1,426.48

-0.01%
-0.12%

(2.82)
(23.85)

-1.05%
-21.32%

(35.82)
100.69

-0.12%
0.39%

(38.64)
76.85

0.38%
0.05%

725.77
82.72

2.28%
-3.80%

658.95
(757.32)

-0.47%
-4.87%

(15.90)
22.99

1.99%
-3.77%

643.05
(734.32)

24.41%
22.66%

46,148.53
36,234.73

34.44%
26.87%

9,955.53
5,356.17

-1.23%
-764.56%

(41.73)
3,611.47

30.69%
46.09%

9,913.80
8,967.64

0.00%
0.00%

-

0.00%
-0.44%

(86.78)

0.00%
0.00%

-

0.00%
-0.45%

(86.78)

0.00%
0.00%

-

0.00%
-1.13%

(225.05)

0.00%
0.00%

-

0.00%
-1.16%

(225.05)

0.88%
0.57%

1,657.35
906.24

2.42%
2.92%

698.50
582.77

1.10%
-10.98%

37.49
51.88

2.28%
3.26%

735.98
634.64

0.09%
0.01%

168.54
15.13

0.33%
0.00%

96.07
-

-0.05%
0.00%

(1.81)
-

0.29%
0.00%

94.25
-

Name of the entity
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March 31 2021
March 31 2020
Raghuvesh
Infrastructure
Private
Limited
March 31 2021
March 31 2020
Joint ventures
Genoa Rice
Mills Private
Limited
March 31 2021
March 31 2020
Daawat
Kameda
India Private
Limited
March 31 2021
March 31 2020
Intragroup
eliminations
March 31 2021
March 31 2020
Total
March 31 2021
March 31 2020

As % of
Consolidated
net assets

Share in other
Comprehensive income

Share in profit and loss

Share in other
Comprehensive income

As % of
As % of
As % of
Consolidated
Consolidated
Consolidated
other J in lakhs
total J in lakhs
J in lakhs
J in lakhs
profit and
Comprehensive
Comprehensive
loss
income
income

0.20%
0.24%

372.68
389.36

-0.06%
-0.41%

(16.68)
(81.55)

0.00%
0.00%

-

-0.05%
-0.42%

(16.68)
(81.55)

0.03%
0.00%

50.33
-

0.17%
0.00%

50.33
-

0.00%
0.00%

-

0.16%
0.00%

50.33
-

0.00%
0.00%

-

0.00%
0.00%

-

0.00%
-0.12%

0.58

0.00%
0.00%

0.58

0.82%
1.25%

1,543.08
2,000.88

-1.58%
-1.29%

(457.59)
(258.01)

-0.01%
0.00%

(0.21)
-

-1.42%
-1.33%

(457.81)
(258.01)

-7.07%
-7.24%

(13,356.84)
(11,574.75)

-0.50%
-0.49%

(144.93)
(97.38)

-1.85%
3.49%

(62.98)
(16.47)

-0.64%
-0.59%

(207.91)
(113.86)

100.00% 28,907.86
100.00% 19,930.50

100.00%
100.00%

3,397.55
(472.35)

100.00% 1,89,025.25
100.00% 1,59,918.24

100.00% 32,305.41
100.00% 19,458.14

* On September 20, 2019, LT Overseas North America, Inc. entered into share purchase agreement with its holding Company to acquire all shares of LT Foods
International Limited, UK Company, wholly owned subsidiary of the Holding Company. LT Foods International Limited has LT Foods Europe BV (Netherlands), as its
wholly owned subsidiary. Therefore, Profit/loss till September 20 are disclosed here and profit/loss along with balance sheet items are clubbed in LT Overseas North
America, Inc.

60 The Group is engaged into the business of manufacturing and selling rice and therefore, its business falls under the category
to provide ‘essential services’. Due to the lock-downs and other restrictions and conditions related to the COVID-19 pandemic
situation, the State Government has granted permission to the Group to run its operations and based on management’s
assessment upto the date of approval of this Statement, the Group is very well equipped with a robust supply chain network
and has no shortage with respect to raw material, including stock of paddy and rice, to fulfil the demand from both India and
international markets. The Group has implemented risk mitigation strategies for the health and wellness of its employees/
workers and plant has been operating with all and necessary adherence to the guidelines issued by the respective authorities.
Based on management’s assessment of the impact on Group’s operations, financial performance and position as at and for
the year ended March 31, 2021, it has been concluded that there is no impact which is required to be recognized in these
financial statements. Accordingly, no adjustments have been made to these financial statements.

61 The Code on Social Security 2020 (‘the Code’) relating to employee benefits, during the employment and post-employment,
0.24%
0.29%

450.81
457.85

-0.02%
-0.18%

(7.03)
(35.79)

0.00%
0.00%

-

-0.02%
-0.18%

(7.03)
(35.79)

has received Presidential assent on September 28, 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. Further, the
Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on November 13, 2020. However, the effective date
from which the changes are applicable is yet to be notified and rules for quantifying the financial impact are also not yet issued.
This is applicable to the Company and its Subsidiaries incorporated in India.
The Group will assess the impact of the Code and will give appropriate impact in the financial statements in the period in
which, the Code becomes effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published.
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11 Fresco Fruit N
Nuts Private
Limited
March 31 2021
March 31 2020
12 Eco Pure
Specialities
Limited
March 31 2021
March 31 2020
Foreign
Subsidiaries
13 Sona Global
Limited
March 31 2021
March 31 2020
14 LT Food
Middle East
DMCC
March 31 2021
March 31 2020
15 LT Overseas
North America,
Inc.
March 31 2021
March 31 2020
16 LT Foods
International
Limited (UK)
March 31 2021
March 31 2020
17 LT Foods
Europe BV
March 31 2021
March 31 2020
18 Nature Bio
Foods BV
March 31 2021
March 31 2020
19 Nature Bio
Foods Inc
March 31 2021
March 31 2020
Associates
20 Raghuvesh
Warehousing
Private
Limited
March 31 2021
March 31 2020
21 Raghuvesh
Agri Foods
Private
Limited

As % of
Consolidated
net assets

Share in profit and loss

for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

LT Foods Limited

Annual Report 2020-21

NOTES
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2021 (All amounts are in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

62 Standards issued but not yet applicable
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such
notification which is applicable for the Group from April 1, 2021.

63 Previous year figures								
Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary, to confirm to current year’s classification.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number:- 105047W
Rahul Aggarwal
Partner
Membership Number: 505676

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2021
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For and on behalf of Board of Directors of LT Foods Limited

Ashwani Kumar Arora
Managing Director and
Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 01574773

Surinder Kumar Arora
Managing Director
DIN: 01574728

Gokul Patnaik
Independent Director
DIN 00027915

Monika Chawla Jaggia
Company Secretary
Membership No.: F5150

